
 

TICO AIRPORT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PAGE 1 OF 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2024  5 P.M.  TICO AA ADMINISTRATION 

BUILDING 
355 GOLDEN KNIGHTS BOULEVARD  TITUSVILLE, FL  32780  

 

AGENDA 
A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

D. Correspondence to Note 

a. Letter from FDOT District 5 Secretary John E. Tyler, P.E. regarding Florida Job Growth 
Grant Award 

E. Approval of Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

a. July 18, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes 

b. August 15, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes 

G. Ratification of Action Items from the August 15, 2024, Regular Meeting 

Grants  

a. Approval: Authority to Execute FAA Grant Agreement No. 3-12-0080-038-2024 and 
Associated Resolution in the Amount of $2,000,000.00 for Construction of the 
Replacement Air Traffic Control Tower at Space Coast Regional Airport. 

b. Approval: Authority to Execute FAA Grant Agreement No. 3-12-0080-040-2024 and 
Associated Resolution in the Amount of $8,572,874 for the Runway 18-36 Rehabilitation 
Project at Space Coast Regional Airport.  

c. Approval: Authority to Execute FAA Grant Agreement No. 3-12-0080-039-2024 and 
Associated Resolution in the Amount of $154,765 for the Airfield Markings Project at 
Space Coast Regional Airport.  

d. Approval: Authority to Execute FDOT Public Transportation Agreement 453054-1-94-01 
Amendment # 1 and Associated Resolution in the Amount of $762,033 for the Runway 
18-36 Rehabilitation Project at Space Coast Regional Airport.  

e. Approval: Authority to Execute FDOT Public Transportation Agreement 450522-1-94-01 
Amendment # 3 and Associated Resolution in the Amount of $30,114 for the Automated 
Weather Observation System at Merritt Island Airport.  

Construction Contract 

a. Approval: Award of Contract to W&J Construction Corporation in the amount of 
$7,987,334 for the Construction of the Replacement Air Traffic Control Tower at Space 
Coast Regional Airport.   
 
 
 



 

TICO AIRPORT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PAGE 2 OF 2 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2024  5 P.M.  TICO AA ADMINISTRATION 

BUILDING 
355 GOLDEN KNIGHTS BOULEVARD  TITUSVILLE, FL  32780  

 
 

H. Action Items - New Business for the September 19, 2024, Regular Meeting  
 

a. Approval: Authority to Execute FDOT Public Transportation Agreement 438461-1-94-01   
Amendment # 4 and Associated Resolution (time extension) for the North Corporate 
Hangar Project at Merritt Island Airport. 

b.    Approval: Purchase of Comprehensive Airport Liability Insurance for Fiscal Year 2024 / 
2025 from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services LLC in the amount of $440,267 
and Associated Documents.  

c.    Approval: License Agreement with C-Speed, LLC for the Temporary Use of Property at 
Space Coast Regional Airport.  

d.  Director of Airports Annual Evaluation  

I. Report: Deputy Director of Operations and Maintenance 

a. Capital Improvement Projects Update 

J. Report: Deputy Director of Finance & Administration 

a. August 2024 Check Register 

b. August 2024 Preliminary Financial Statements 

K. Report: Authority Attorney 

L. Reports: Authority Members 

M. Public Comments 

N. Adjourn 

 

 



 

CALL TO ORDER 



 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 



 

ROLL CALL  



 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  



 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES  



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 1 July 18, 2024 

 

 

 

TITUSVILLE – COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority was held 

on July 18, 2024, 5 p.m., at the Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority Office, 

355 Golden Knights Boulevard, Titusville, Florida, and via video 

conference. The following members were present:  Mr. Donn Mount, Vice 

Chairman; Mr. Al Voss, Treasurer; Ms. Jessica Curry, Secretary; Mr. Roger 

Molitor; Mr. Brad Whitmore; Mr. Mark Grainger; Mr. Kevin Daugherty, 

AAE, Director of Airports; and Mr. Adam Bird, Attorney. Mr. John Craig, 

Chairman, attended via video conference. 

 

Call to Order 

  

Mr. Mount called the meeting to order and determined a quorum was 

present. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 Members and attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Approval of the Agenda 

 

Mr. Mount called for any changes or corrections to the agenda. Mr. 

Daugherty stated there were none. Mr. Mount called for a motion to approve 

the agenda as presented. Mr. Molitor made a motion to approve the agenda 

as presented. Mr. Voss seconded the motion.  All voted aye. Motion passed. 

  

Approval of Meeting Minutes: 

 

1. June 20, 2024 – Regular Meeting 

 

Mr. Mount called for a motion to approve the June 20, 2024; meeting 

minutes as presented.  Mr. Molitor made the motion.  Mr. Whitmore 

seconded the motion. All voted aye. Motion passed. 

 

Correspondence of Note 

 

Mr. Daugherty described the notes of gratitude received by an Arthur 

Dunn Airpark tenant and a Space Coast Regional Airport tenant, thanking 

the Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority Staff for their help and assistance 

when needed. 

    

 

 

 

 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 2 July 18, 2024 

 

 

 

 

Action Items  

 

1. Approval of FDOT Public Transportation Grant Agreement No. 

438494-2-94-01, Amendment No. 1, and Associated Resolution in 

the Amount of $1,500,000.00 for Construction of the Replacement 

Air Traffic Control Tower at Space Coast Regional Airport 

 

Mr. Daugherty discussed the details regarding the FDOT Public 

Transportation Grant Agreement, Amendment No. 1, and Associated 

Resolution for construction of the Replacement Air Traffic Control 

Tower at Space Coast Regional Airport and recommended approval. 

 

Mr. Mount called for a motion to approve as presented by Mr. 

Daugherty. Mr. Molitor made a motion to approve the resolution as 

presented.  Ms. Curry seconded the motion. All voted aye.  Motion 

passed. 

 

2. Approval of FDOT Public Transportation Grant Agreement No. 

438494-3-94-01 and Associated Resolution in the amount of 

$177,777.00 for Construction of the Air Traffic Control Tower at 

Space Coast Regional Airport 

 

Mr. Daugherty discussed the details regarding the FDOT Public 

Transportation Grant Agreement and Associated Resolution for 

construction of the Air Traffic Control Tower at Space Coast Regional 

Airport and recommended approval. 

 

Mr. Mount called for a motion to approve as presented by Mr. 

Daugherty. Mr. Molitor made a motion to approve the resolution as 

presented. Mr. Voss seconded the motion.  All voted aye. Motion 

passed. 

 

3. Approval of Selection Committee Rankings for Request for 

Qualifications (RFQ) 2024-001 (Insurance Brokerage Services); 

Authorize Staff to Enter into Contract Negotiations with Top-

Ranked Firm 

 

Mr. Daugherty introduced Dr. Dave Byers from Quadrex Aviation.  Dr. 

Byers was assigned to assemble & distribute the RFQ and act as the 

Selection Committee Facilitator.  Dr. Byers provided an over of the 

document and Selection Committee results with the Board members and 

requested approval to enter into contract negotiations with the top-

ranked firm, Gallagher.  Mr. Molitor made a motion to approve as 

presented.  Mr. Whitmore seconded the motion.  All voted aye.  Motion 

passed. 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 3 July 18, 2024 

 

 

 

 

4. Annual Performance Review – Director of Airports 

 

Mr. Craig suggested each Board Member give a short summary of Mr. 

Daugherty’s past performance as Director of Airports and any 

recommendations for enhancement going forward. 

 

Mr. Voss stated Mr. Daugherty is doing a great job at present but would 

like to see more quantitative measures in place. 

 

Ms. Curry complimented Mr. Daugherty on an amazing job with the 

progress that has been made. 

 

Mr. Molitor stated that Mr. Daugherty has done a really nice job at 

cleaning up past issues. Going forward, Mr. Molitor would like to see 

more allocation of the airport’s limited cash funds go towards 

improvements to tenant hangars. 

 

Mr. Whitmore also stated that Mr. Daugherty has done a good job with 

the turnaround of past issues. 

 

Mr. Grainger stated that Mr. Daugherty has done well in cleaning up 

issues before him and is excited to see what new endeavors Mr. 

Daugherty has for the future. 

 

Mr. Craig would like to see the next level of goals from Mr. Daugherty 

for the progress of the Airport to exceed even further. 

   

Deputy Director of Operations and Maintenance Report 

 

1. Capital Improvement Projects Update 

 

Mr. Hopman stated the Challenger Avenue Extension Design plan 

is in a pause phase regarding future funding. 

 

Mr. Hopman stated the Runway 18/36 Rehab  project at the Space Coast 

Regional Airport is currently waiting construction funding from the 

FAA and FDOT. 

 

Mr. Hopman stated the construction of the new Airport Traffic Control 

Tower at the Space Coast Regional Airport is currently waiting 

construction funding from the FAA and FDOT. 

 

 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 4 July 18, 2024 

 

 

 

Mr. Hopman stated the Corporate Hangar at Merritt Island Airport is 

currently under review by the Brevard County Site Plan Review 

Committee.  

 

Mr. Hopman stated that noise complaints for the month of June have 

been very few with the same people calling. 

 

Mr. Hopman reviewed the daily operations at each airport.  Arthur Dunn 

Airpark operations were less than typical in the month of June. 

 

Deputy Director of Finance and Administration Report 

 

1.  Check Register 

 

a. June 2024 

 

Ms. Kinard presented the check register for June 2024 and called for 

any questions.  There were none. 

 

2. June Financial Statements 

 

Ms. Kinard gave an overview of the financial statements for the month 

of June 2024 and called for any questions.  Ms. Kinard stated that the 

June financials should probably be stated as preliminary June financial 

statements due to the unresolved correction to the lease valuations and 

documentation as stated in the auditor’s corrective action plan. 

 

Mr. Mount questioned the Airport Authority’s Truist line of credit.  Ms. 

Kinard stated the Truist line of credit has been paid in full. 

 

Mr. Grainger questioned the reason for an excess number of Airport 

Storage Units vacancies.  Ms. Kinard stated most vacancies were due to 

those having no air conditioning and being in a hard to access location. 

 

Authority Attorney Report 

 

Mr. Bird stated there were no updates. 

 

Authority Member’s Report 

 

Mr. Mount called for any comments or questions from the Board.  There 

were none. 

 

Public Comments 

 

Mr. Mount called for public comments.  



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 5 July 18, 2024 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Bill Weiler, from the Civil Air Patrol, spoke about the attention given 

to Merritt Island Airport by the EOC (Emergency Operations Center) and 

the Secretary of Agriculture regarding a request for damage assessment 

pertaining to future storms. 

 

Ms. Elizabeth Schneider addressed the Board regarding her personal 

opinions regarding the eviction issue concerning 2-Fly at Merritt Island 

Airport. 

 

Mr. Patrick Pacifico addressed the Board regarding his concerns about the 

eviction of 2-Fly at Merritt Island due to his son being a student pilot. 

 

Mr. Rivera voiced his personal opinions regarding the eviction of 2-Fly. 

 

Mr. Tom Consbruck, from the EAA Chapter at Merritt Island, spoke on 

behalf of pilots that believe flying in and out of the Merritt Island Airport is 

unsafe due to the amount air traffic coming from 2-Fly academy. 

 

Mr. Jerome Duque addressed the Board as the Director of Operations at 2-

Fly regarding the possibility of eviction. 

 

 

Adjournment 

 

 Mr. Mount adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 

 

 

 

 __________________________________________________ 

 JOHN CRAIG, CHAIRMAN 

 

 

 ___________________________________________________ 

 DONN MOUNT, VICE CHAIRMAN 

 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 1 August 15, 2024 
 

TITUSVILLE – COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority was held 
on August 15, 2024, 5 p.m., at the Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority 
Office, 355 Golden Knights Boulevard, Titusville, Florida, and via video 
conference. The following members were present:  Mr. Donn Mount, Vice 
Chairman; Mr. Al Voss, Treasurer; Ms. Jessica Curry, Secretary; Mr. Kevin 
Daugherty, AAE, Director of Airports; and Mr. Adam Bird, Attorney. Mr. 
Roger Molitor and Mr. Brad Whitmore attended via video conference. Mr. 
John Craig, Chairman; and Mr. Mark Grainger were absent. 
 

Call to Order 
  

Mr. Voss called the meeting to order and determined a quorum was not 
present. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 Members and attendees recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Approval of the Agenda 

 
Approval of the Agenda was postponed due to a lack of quorum. 
 
Mr. Daugherty presented the agenda as discussion items only. 
 

Approval of Meeting Minutes: 
 
1. July 18, 2024 – Regular Meeting 

 
Approval of July 18, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes will be 
postponed until next month’s meeting due to lack of a quorum. 

 
Action Items  

 
1. Approval of Authority to Execute FAA Grant Agreement No. 3-12-

0080-038-2024 and Associated Resolution in the Amount of 
$2,000,000.00 for Construction of Replacement Air Traffic Control 
Tower at Space Coast Regional Airport 
 
This action item is a discussion only due to lack of a quorum.  
 
Mr. Daugherty introduced Mr. Rob Hambrecht, from AVCON, to the 
Board to give an overview of the phasing of the project for the 
construction of Replacement Air Traffic Control Tower at Space Coast 
Regional Airport.   



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 1 August 15, 2024 
 

 
2. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to FDOT Public Transportation 

Grant Agreement No. 453054-1-94-01 and Associated Resolution 
for the Rehabilitation of Runway 18/36 at Space Coast Regional 
Airport 
 
This action item is a discussion only due to lack of a quorum.  
 
Mr. Rob Hambrecht spoke on behalf of AVCON, to give an overview 
of the current phase of the Rehabilitation of Runway 18/36 at Space 
Coast Regional Airport.  
 
 

3. Approval of Amendment No. 3 to FDOT Public Transportation 
Grant Agreement No. 450522-1-94-01  and Associated Resolution 
for the Replacement of the Automated Weather Observation 
System (AWOS) at Merritt Island Airport 

 
This action item is a discussion only due to lack of a quorum.   
 
Mr. Daugherty gave a brief overview of the Automated Weather 
Observation System (AWOS) at Merritt Island Airport. 
 

4. Approval of Recommendation to Award the Construction Contract 
for the Replacement Air Traffic Control Tower at Space Coast 
Regional Airport to W + J Construction in the Amount of 
$7,987,334.00 
 
This action item is a discussion only due lack of a quorum.  
 
Mr. Daugherty briefly discussed the construction contract with W+J 
Construction for the Replacement Air Traffic Control Tower at Space 
Coast Regional Airport.  
 

5. Approval of Director of Airports Annual Performance Review 
 

Action is postponed until next month’s meeting due to lack of a quorum.  
   
Deputy Director of Operations and Maintenance Report 
 

1. Capital Improvement Projects Update 
 

Mr. Hopman stated the Merritt Island Runway design work has begun. 
 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 1 August 15, 2024 
 

Mr. Hopman stated the Merritt Island Corporate Hangar project is 
substantially completed but awaiting the final Certificate of Occupancy 
documentation from Brevard County. 

 
Mr. Hopman stated that noise complaints for the month of July have 
been quiet. 
 
Mr. Hopman reviewed the daily operations at each airport.  Space Coast 
Regional Airport has had more activity due to Merritt Island tenant, 2-
Fly, conducting more of their flights in the month of July at Space Coast 
Regional Airport. 

 
Deputy Director of Finance and Administration Report 
 

1.  Check Register 
 

a. July 2024 
 

Ms. Kinard presented the check register for July 2024 and called for any 
questions.  There were none. 

 
2. July Financial Statements 

 
Ms. Kinard provided an overview of the  financial statements for the 
month of July 2024 and stated they were considered preliminary 
financial statement due to outstanding items that will alter the balance 
sheet totals.  Ms. Kinard stated the unresolved correction to the lease 
valuations and documentation are still outstanding as noted in the FY 
2022-2023 audit and auditor’s corrective action plan.  Ms. Kinard 
provided details on the outstanding receivables and documentation 
required for proper classification of receivables and bad debt.  Questions 
were called.  There were none.  

 
Authority Attorney Report 
 

Mr. Bird stated the current status on the eviction of Merritt Island 2-Fly has 
October 31, 2024, as the deadline to be vacated. 
 

Authority Member’s Report 
 

Mr. Voss called for any comments or questions from the Board.  There were 
none. 

 
Public Comments 
 

Mr. Voss called for public comments. There were no comments. 



REGULAR BOARD MEETING 1 August 15, 2024 
 

 
Adjournment 
 
 Mr. Voss adjourned the meeting at 5:24 p.m. 
 
 
 
 __________________________________________________ 
 JOHN CRAIG, CHAIRMAN 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 DONN MOUNT, VICE CHAIRMAN 
 



 

RATIFICATION OF ACTION ITEMS FROM THE AUGUST 
15TH, 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING  



 

APPROVAL: FAA GRANT AGREEMENT  

NO. 3-12-0080-038-2024  





































































 

APPROVAL: FAA GRANT AGREEMENT  

NO. 3-12-0080-040-2024  





































































 

APPROVAL: FAA GRANT AGREEMENT  

NO. 3-12-0080-039-2024  





































































 

APPROVAL: FDOT PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
AGREEMENT 453054-1-94-01 AMENDMENT #1  



















 

ACTION ITEMS 

FDOT PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 
450522-1-94-01 AMENDMENT #3  

























 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  

SPACE COAST REGIONAL AIRPORT  

AIR TRAFFIC CONTROL TOWER  







Travis Lorenzen

























































 

ACTION ITEMS 

FDOT PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 
438461-1-94-01 AMENDMENT #4  



STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

AMENDMENT FOR EXTENSION OF PUBLIC 

TRANSPORTATION GRANT AGREEMENT

Form 725-000-04

STRATEGIC

DEVELOPMENT

OGC 02/19

DATE: 9/5/24

TO: Justin Hopman

Titusville-Cocoa Airport District

FROM: Luci Taylor

SUBJECT: Corporate Hangar

Merritt Island Airport

CONTRACT NUMBER: G1N21

AMENDMENT NUMBER: 1

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT NUMBER: 438461-1

The Public Transportation Grant Agreement (“Agreement”) between the Florida Department of Transportation 

(“Department”) and    Titusville-Cocoa Airport District     (“Agency”), dated   06/10/2020   , is scheduled to expire on the  2   

day of   October  ,   2024  . 

The Agency requests an Amendment of the Agreement, to extend the end date of the Agreement to the   1   day of   June  

,   2025  ,  for additional time to complete the Project for the following reasons:  Brevard County Permitting has held up 

issuing the Certificate of Occupancy while we reverify drainage calculations and change the location of the dumpster.    . 

The Department agrees to the requested extension of the Agreement. All of the terms and conditions of the Agreement 

and any amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment on                        (to be completed by 

Department).

Agency: Titusville-Cocoa Airport District        

By: __________________________________

Name: __________________________________

Title: __________________________________

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By: ________________________________________

Name: _C. Jack Adkins_____________________________

Title: _Director of Transportation Development___________

STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Legal Review:

_________________________________________

Agency_Sign Invoice_Director_Sign

FDOT_District_Sign

PL530TL
Text Box


PL530TL
Text Box
4





 

ACTION ITEMS 

PURCHASE OF COMPREHENSIVE AIRPORT LIABILITY 
INSURANCE FOR FY 2024/2025  



 

ajg.com 

©2022 Arthur J. Gallagher & Co. All rights reserved. 

Proposal of Insurance 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 
51 Bristow Way 
Titusville, FL 32780      
 

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services LLC 
Tom Coughlin, AAI | Area Executive Vice President 
Tom_Coughlin@ajg.com | (386) 672-6210 
 
Presented: August 28, 2024 
 
AJG License Nos.IL 100292093 / CA 0D69293 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

2 

Table of Contents 
Your Gallagher Team .................................................................................................................................................. 3 

Service Commitment .............................................................................................................................................. 3 
Named Insured ............................................................................................................................................................. 4 
Market Review .............................................................................................................................................................. 5 
Full Program Details .................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Package Policy – Public Risk Management of Florida ........................................................................................... 6 
-  Property ............................................................................................................................................................... 6 
-  Property Terrorism & Sabotage ......................................................................................................................... 10 
-  Active Shooter & Malicious Attack ..................................................................................................................... 14 
-  Equipment Breakdown ...................................................................................................................................... 15 
-  General Liability/Public Officials/Employment Practices Liability ....................................................................... 16 
-  Auto Liability ...................................................................................................................................................... 17 
-  Workers’ Compensation .................................................................................................................................... 20 
-  Crime (Optional) ................................................................................................................................................ 21 
-  Cyber Liability (Optional) ................................................................................................................................... 22 
Payment Plans ..................................................................................................................................................... 24 

Proposal Disclosures ................................................................................................................................................ 25 
Coverages for Consideration ................................................................................................................................... 28 
Claims Reporting By Policy ...................................................................................................................................... 29 
Binding Requirements .............................................................................................................................................. 30 
Bindable Quotations & Compensation Disclosure Schedule ................................................................................ 31 
Summary of Significant Coverage Changes ........................................................................................................... 32 
Premium Summary .................................................................................................................................................... 35 
Client Authorization to Bind Coverage .................................................................................................................... 37 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

3 

Your Gallagher Team 

Your Gallagher team is a true partner.  We have the expertise to understand your business and we’re here to service and stay 
alongside you, every step of the way.  
 

Service Team Role Email Phone 

Tom Coughlin, AAI 
Area Executive Vice President 

Producer Tom_Coughlin@ajg.com (386) 672-6210 (p) 

Donna Alex, CIC, AAI, CAIP, CPIW 
Client Service Supervisor 

Client Service Supervisor Donna_Alex@ajg.com (386) 267-1812 (p) 

Cheryl Longino 
Client Service Associate 

Client Service Associate Cheryl_Longino@ajg.com (386) 267-1804 (p) 

Charlene Jones 
Client Service Associate 

Client Service Associate Charlene_Jones@ajg.com (386) 267-1803 (p) 

 
 
Service Commitment 

Account Service 
At Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., our goal is to provide you with an exceptional insurance and risk management program delivered 
by a world class service organization. Gallagher is committed to partnering with our clients to ensure we consistently deliver the 
highest quality service possible. 

Automobile Identification Cards 
ID cards will be issued upon binding of coverage. 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

4 

 

Named Insured 

Named Insured 
Aviation Ground 

Operations 
Liability 

Workers' 
Compensation 

Property 
Including 

Inland 
Marine 

Business 
Automobile 

Public Officials 
Management and 

Employment 
Practices 

Titusville Cocoa Airport 
Authority 

X X X X X 

 
 

 
 

Note:  Any entity not named in this proposal may not be an insured entity. This may include affiliates, subsidiaries, LLCs, 
partnerships, and joint ventures.



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

5 

Market Review 
We approached the following carriers in an effort to provide the most comprehensive and cost effective insurance program. 
 

Line Of Coverage 
Insurance Company ** (AM Best Rate/Financial 
Strength) 

Market 
Response * 

Admitted 
*** 

Package Policy 
  - Property 
  - Equipment Breakdown 
  - Public Officials /Employment Practices 
  - Auto Liability 
  - Workers’ Compensation 
  - Crime 
  - Cyber Liability 

Public Risk Management 
Recommended 
Quote 

      **** 

Property Preferred Aviation Underwriters 
Not 
Competitive 

Non 
Admitted 

Property Excess and Surplus Lines 
Not 
Competitive 

Non 
Admitted 

 
*If shown as an indication, the actual premium and acceptance of the coverage requested will be determined by the market after 
a thorough review of the completed application. 
 
**Gallagher companies use AM Best rated insurers and the rating listed above was verified on the date the proposal document 
was created. 
 
Best's Credit Ratings™ reproduced herein appear under license from AM Best and do not constitute, either expressly or 
impliedly, an endorsement of Gallagher’s service or its recommendations. AM Best is not responsible for transcription errors 
made in presenting Best's Credit Ratings™. Best’s Credit Ratings™ are proprietary and may not be reproduced or distributed 
without the express written permission of AM Best. 
 
A Best’s Financial Strength Rating is an independent opinion of an insurer’s financial strength and ability to meet its ongoing 
insurance policy and contract obligations. It is not a warranty of a company’s financial strength and ability to meet its obligations 
to policyholders. Best's Credit Ratings™ are under continuous review and subject to change and/or affirmation. For the latest 
Best’s Credit Ratings™ and Guide to Best’s Credit Ratings, visit the AM Best website at http://www.ambest.com/ratings. 
 
***If coverage placed with a non-admitted carrier, it is doing business in the state as a surplus lines or non-admitted carrier, and 
is neither subject to the same regulations as an admitted carrier nor do they participate in any state insurance guarantee fund. 
 
Gallagher companies make no representations and warranties concerning the solvency of any carrier, nor does it make any 
representation or warranty concerning the rating of the carrier which may change. 
 
 
****Public Risk Management - The financial position of Public Risk Management of Florida [PRM] is categorized as notably 
stable and secure. Formed in 1987, PRM has consistently provided a quality and constant alternative to the general 
insurance marketplace. PRM is not a rapid growth association and has retained a tremendous percentage of long-term 
clients; currently including 70 members that comprise of counties, cities and special districts in Florida. The pool does not 
retain any risk on catastrophic property coverage (wind or flood) and cedes all the risk to A.M. Best “A-Rated” or better 
carriers. PRM’s premium-to-surplus ratio exceeds pooling industry standards. Additionally, PRM is the only association of its 
kind that is Membership Driven, whereby members have a voice as it relates to the direction of the association overall. 
Entities that purchase all lines of insurance from PRM are automatically granted a seat on the board of directors, which is 
comprised of representatives of each association member. Board members set policy which is then carried out by the Executive 
Board and the PRM Executive Director. This voice allows our members to have overall control on the direction of the association 
which can include, but is not limited to, requests for improved services, expanded coverages or even deeper surplus credits. 
PRM holds quarterly board meetings, which all board members are encouraged to attend, for updates and to exercise their right 
to vote. 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

6 

Full Program Details 

Package Policy – Public Risk Management of Florida  
     -  Property 
PROPERTY 
 

 PROPERTY 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

TOTAL INSURED VALUES $55,819,980 

DEDUCTIBLES  

 ALL OTHER PERILS, EXCEPT: $1,000 
 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE $1,000 
 ALL OTHER FLOOD – PER UNIT $1,000 
 FLOOD – SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS EXCESS OF NFIP 
 NAMED WINDSTORM - PER AFFECTED UNIT 5% - NO MINIMUM 
 INLAND MARINE $1,000 

VALUATION 
 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE ACTUAL CASH VALUE 
 BUSINESS INCOME ACTUAL LOSS SUSTAINED 
 COINSURANCE NONE 
 INLAND MARINE REPLACEMENT COST 
 PROPERTY REPLACEMENT COST 

ASSOCIATION LIMITS 

ALL PERILS, COVERAGE’S AND INSURED’S/ 
MEMBERS COMBINED – PER OCCURRENCE, 
SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING SUB-LIMITS: 

$250,000,000 

 FLOOD – PER OCCURRENCE ANNUAL AGGREGATE $50,000,000 

 FLOOD SUBLIMIT – ANNUAL AGGREGATE 
‐ CONTRACTORS EQUIPMENT 

‐ FINE ARTS 

‐ LICENSED VEHICLES 

‐ UNLICENSED VEHICLES 

$5,000,000 

 FLOOD SUBLIMIT 
‐ PER OCCURRENCE 

‐ MISCELLANEOUS UNNAMED LOCATIONS 

$10,000,000 

 EARTHQUAKE SHOCK LIMIT 
- PER OCCURRENCE & IN THE ANNUAL 

AGGREGATE 

$50,000,000 

 WIND/HAIL LIMIT PER OCCURRENCE NAMED 

WINDSTORM 
$50,000,000 

 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE 
 ON AND OFF PREMISES 
 OVER THE ROAD 

$10,000,000 

 
*The limits represented for PRM are Association Limits and are shared for property only. Limits apply on a per occurrence basis 
unless otherwise stated. Included denotes full policy limits apply* 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

7 

PROPERTY 
 
 

 PROPERTY 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE…] 
 ACCIDENTAL CONTAMINATION $250,000/$500,000 
 ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES INCLUDED 
 ANIMALS 

• UNSCHEDULED ANIMALS 
INCLUDED 

$50,000 FOR ANY ONE ANIMAL / $250,000 PER 
OCCURRENCE 

 ASBESTOS CLEAN-UP & REMOVAL (RESULTANT) LIMITED COVERAGE 

 AUTOMATIC ACQUISITION LIMIT $25,000,000 

 AUTOMATIC ACQUISITION LIMIT FOR 
• VEHICLES 

• SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 

 
$10,000,000 

$10,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE 

 BUILDING ORDINANCE   
UNDAMAGED PORTION OF BUILDING 

INCLUDED 

 BUSINESS INTERRUPTION $75,000,000 
 CIVIL AUTHORITY 

WITHIN 10 MILES OF INSURED PREMISE 
30 DAYS 

 CLAIM PREPARATION EXPENSE $1,000,000 

 CONTINGENT BUSINESS INTERRUPTION 
$5,000,000 

EXCEPT TAX REVENUE EXCLUDED 

 COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION & ADDITIONS 
$50,000,000 

EXCLUDES FRAME BUILDERS RISK 

 DEBRIS REMOVAL INCLUDED 

 DEMOLITION INCLUDED 
 EARTH MOVEMENT EXCEPT 

• VEHICLES, CONTRACTORS EQUIPMENT, 
FINE ARTS COMBINED 

$50,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE 
$5,000,000 COMBINED AGGREGATE 

 ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING (EDP) INCLUDED 
 ERRORS & OMISSIONS $25,000,000 

 EXPEDITING EXPENSE $50,000,000 

 EXTENDED PERIOD OF INDEMNITY 180 DAYS 

 EXTRA EXPENSE $50,000,000 
 FINE ARTS 
 UNSCHEDULED FINE ARTS 

INCLUDED 
$2,500,000 

 FIRE FIGHTING EXPENSE INCLUDED 
 FLOOD EXCEPT 

 SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 
 VEHICLES, CONTRACTORS EQUIPMENT, 

FINE ARTS COMBINED 

$50,000,000 
INCLUDED 

$5,000,000 COMBINED AGGREGATE 

 IMPROVEMENT & BETTERMENT INCLUDED 

 INCREASED COST OF CONSTRUCTION $25,000,000 
 
*The limits represented for PRM are Association Limits and are shared for property only. Limits apply on a per occurrence basis 
unless otherwise stated. Included denotes full policy limits apply* 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

8 

PROPERTY 
 
 

 PROPERTY 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE…] 
 INGRESS & EGRESS 

WITHIN 10 MILES OF INSURED PREMISE 
30 DAYS 

 JEWELRY, FURS, & PRECIOUS METALS – 
SEPARATELY $500,000 

 LANDSCAPING, TEES, SAND TRAPS, GREENS, 
ATHLETIC GREENS EXCEPT 

• UNSCHEDULED LANDSCAPING, TEES, 
SAND TRAPS, GREENS, ATHLETIC GREENS 

$5,000,000 
 

$1,000,000 

 LEASEHOLD INTEREST INCLUDED 
 MISCELLANEOUS UNNAMED LOCATIONS 

EXCEPT 

• SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS 

$25,000,000 
 

$10,000,000 ANNUAL AGGREGATE 

 MOLD (RESULTANT) $35,000 AGGREGATE 

 MONEY AND SECURITIES $2,500,000 

 OFF PREMISES SERVICE INTERRUPTION 

INCLUDING EXTRA EXPENSE $25,000,000 

 PERSONAL EFFECTS INCLUDED 

PERSONAL PROPERTY OF OTHERS INCLUDED 

 PERSONAL PROPERTY OUTSIDE THE USA $1,000,000 

 PROTECTION AND PRESERVATION OF 
PROPERTY 

INCLUDED 

 PROPERTY OFF PREMISES INCLUDED 

 SIGNS INCLUDED 

 TRANSIT $25,000,000 

 TUNNELS, BRIDGES, DAMS, CATWALKS – 
UNSCHEDULED 

$500,000 

 VALUABLE PAPERS AND RECORDS INCLUDED 

 WATERCRAFT 
• UP TO 27 FEET, UNSCHEDULED 
• OVER 27 FEET, SCHEDULED 

 

$250,000 UNSCHEDULED  
ALL SCHEDULED INCLUDED 

EXCLUSIONS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 RUST, WET/DRY ROT, LAND & LAND VALUES, 

COMMUNICABLE DISEASE, PROPERTY CYBER & 

DATA 

 
EXCLUDED 

 
*The limits represented for PRM are Association Limits and are shared for property only. Limits apply on a per occurrence basis 
unless otherwise stated. Included denotes full policy limits apply* 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

9 

PROPERTY 
 
 

 
 

RATING EXPOSURES 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

TOTAL INSURANCE VALUES 2024 – 2025 

   

TOTAL BUILDING VALUES $45,591,060 

TOTAL CONTENT VALUES $1,711,290 

DECLARED/PROP IN OPEN $6,681,105 

EDP EQUIPMENT (HARDWARE) 35,500 

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION/EXTRA EXPENSE $1,000,000 

EQUIPMENT VALUES  

AUTOMOBILE VALUES – ACTUAL CASH VALUE $801,025 

AUTOMOBILE VALUES – REPLACEMENT COST - 

RENTAL VALUES - 

MISCELLANEOUS PROPERTY - 

TOTAL INSURABLE VALUES $55,819,980 

 

*APPRAISAL COSTS ARE INCLUDED WITHIN THE PRM PROGRAM* 
AN APPRAISAL WILL BE CONDUCTED WITHIN O N E  YEAR OF JOINING PRM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

10 

 
     -  Property Terrorism & Sabotage 

PROPERTY TERRORISM & SABOTAGE 
 
 

 PROPERTY TERRORISM & SABOTAGE 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

CARRIER  LLOYDS OF LONDON 
NAMED INSURED  PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

 TERRORISM & SABOTAGE 
$25,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE 

$25,000,000 AGGREGATE 
DEDUCTIBLE  $25,000 

ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 
 BUSINESS INTERRUPTION SUBLIMIT  $25,000,000 

 CIVIL OR MILITARY AUTHORITY SUBLIMIT  $1,000,000, 30 DAY(S), AND 1 MILE(S) 

 DEBRIS REMOVAL EXPENSES SUBLIMIT  $250,000 

 DECONTAMINATION  COSTS  EXCLUDING  NCBR SUBLIMIT  $250,000 

 DEMOLITION & INCREASED COST OF CONSTRUCTION 
SUBLIMIT 

$1,000,000 

 ERRORS & OMISSIONS SUBLIMIT  $250,000 

 ELECTRONIC DATA PROCESSING MEDIA SUBLIMIT  $1,000,000 

 EXTENDED PERIOD OF INDEMNITY SUBLIMIT  $0 AND 180 DAY(S) 

 FINE ART SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 INGRESS/EGRESS SUBLIMIT  $ 1,000,000, 30 DAY(S), AND 1 MILE(S) 

 PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 PROFESSIONAL FEES SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 RELOCATION EXPENSE SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 SERVICE INTERRUPTION SUBLIMIT  $ 1,000,000, 30 DAY(S), AND 1 MILE(S) 

 TRANSIT SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 VALUABLE PAPERS SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 ASBESTOS SUBLIMIT  $ 500,000 

 AUTOMATIC COVERAGE SUBLIMIT  $ 1,000,000 AND 30 DAY(S) 

 COMMISSIONS, PROFITS, & ROYALTIES SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 DELAY IN STARTUP COSTS SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 FIRE PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS SUBLIMIT  $ 10,000 

 GREEN BUILDING ADDITIONAL EXPENSE  SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 KEY & LOCK EXPENSE SUBLIMIT  $ 250,000 

 LANDSCAPING SUBLIMIT  $ 10,000 

 LOSS OF ATTRACTION SUBLIMIT  $0, 0 DAY(S), AND 0 MILE(S) 

 MISCELLANEOUS UNNAMED LOCATIONS SUBLIMIT  $ 1,000,000 AND 30 DAY(S) 

 NEWLY ACQUIRED LOCATIONS SUBLIMIT  $ 1,000,000 AND 90 DAY(S) 

 PROPERTY IN COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION SUBLIMIT  $1,000,000 

 RENTAL INCOME SUBLIMIT  NOT INCLUDED 

 SOFT COST SUBLIMIT  $250,000 
 
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, ALL SUB-LIMITS LISTED ABOVE APPLY ON A PER OCCURRENCE BASIS AND ARE A PART OF, 
AND NOT IN ADDITION TO, THE ACTIVE SHOOTER AND MALICIOUS ATTACK LIMIT OF LIABILITY 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

11 

 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

12 

 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

13 

 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

14 

 
     -  Active Shooter & Malicious Attack 

 

ACTIVE SHOOTER & MALICIOUS ATTACK 
 
 
 

 ACTIVE SHOOTER & MALICIOUS ATTACK 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

CARRIER LLOYDS OF LONDON 

NAMED INSURED PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

ACTIVE SHOOTER & MALICIOUS ATTACK 
$2,000,000 PER OCCURRENCE 

$2,000,000 AGGREGATE 

DEDUCTIBLE $25,000 

ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 

 ADDITIONAL SECURITY MEASURES SUBLIMIT $250,000 

 COUNSELING SUBLIMIT $250,000 

 PUBLIC RELATIONS COSTS SUBLIMIT $250,000 

 MISCELLANEOUS CRISIS MANAGEMENT 

EXPENSES SUBLIMIT 
$250,000 

 WAITING PERIOD 0 HOURS 

 
UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, ALL SUB-LIMITS LISTED ABOVE APPLY ON A PER OCCURRENCE BASIS AND ARE A PART OF, AND NOT IN 

ADDITION TO, THE MUNICIPALITIES TERRORISM AND SABOTAGE LIMIT OF LIABILITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

15 

     -  Equipment Breakdown 

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN 
 
 
 

 EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

CARRIER TRAVELERS ENERGYMAX 21 

NAMED INSURED PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

DEDUCTIBLES  

 ALL OBJECTS $1,000 
 TRANSFORMERS 10,000 KVA $10,000 

VALUATION 
 ALL OTHER EQUIPMENT 
 EQUIPMENT & PROPERTY 25 YEARS OR OLDER ACV 

REPAIR AND/OR REPLACEMENT 
ACTUAL CASH VALUE 

ASSOCIATION LIMITS 

LIMIT PER ACCIDENT $50,000,000 

ASSOCIATION SUBLIMITS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 
 BUSINESS INCOME / EXTRA EXPENSE 

 

 PERIOD OF RESTORATION EXTENSION 

$100,000 
 

30 DAYS 

 SPOILAGE DAMAGE COVERAGE -INCL UTILITY 

INTERRUPTION 
INCLUDED 

 UTILITY INTERRUPTION SPOILAGE COVERAGE - 
WAITING PERIOD 

4 HOURS 

 ERRORS IN DESCRIPTION INCLUDED 

 EXPEDITING EXPENSE INCLUDED 

 HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE $2,000,000 

 MEDIA $500,000 

 NEWLY ACQUIRED LOCATION INCLUDED 

 ORDINANCE OR LAW INCL. DEMOLITION $1,000,000 

 REFRIGERANT CONTAMINATION INCLUDED 

 WATER DAMAGE $100,000 

MAJOR PERILS EXCLUDED 
 EARTHQUAKE EXCLUDED 

 EC PERILS EXCLUDED 

 FLOOD EXCLUDED 

 FURNACE EXPLOSION EXCLUDED 

 LIGHTNING EXCLUDED 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

16 

 
     -  General Liability/Public Officials/Employment Practices Liability 

GENERAL LIABILITY/PUBLIC OFFICIALS/EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY 
 

 GENERAL LIABILITY 
RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

COVERAGE FORM OCCURRENCE 

SELF INSURED RETENTION $0 

LIMITS 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY (INCLUSIVE OF SIR) 
$1,000,000 

EXCLUDES LIABILITY ARISING FROM AIRPORT OPERATIONS 

COVERAGE [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY INCLUDED 

 LAW ENFORCEMENT LIABILITY EXCLUDED 

TERMS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 COMMUNICABLE DISEASE* 
$200,000 PER CLAIMANT/$300,000 PER OCC/$300,000 

MEMBER AGG/$3,000,000 POOL AGG 

 
 PUBLIC OFFICIALS/EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 

LIABILITY 
COVERAGE FORM EACH CLAIM 

RETROACTIVE DATE 10/01/2011 

LIMITS 
LIMIT OF LIABILITY $1,000,000/$3,000,000 

SUBLIMITS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 
 BERT HARRIS 

$300,000/$300,000 
RETROACTIVE DATE:  10/01/2015 

 INVERSE CONDEMNATION 
$100,000/$100,000 

RETROACTIVE DATE:  10/01/2015 

 NON-MONETARY DAMAGES 
$100,000/$100,000 

RETROACTIVE DATE:  10/01/2015 
 SEXUAL MISCONDUCT 

CAN BE INCLUDED AT NO ADDITIONAL COST 
RETROACTIVE DATE: TBD 

TERMS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 COMMUNICABLE DISEASE* 
$200,000 PER CLAIMANT/$300,000 PER OCC/$300,000 

MEMBER AGG/$3,000,000 POOL AGG 

 ETHICS VIOLATIONS REIMBURSEMENT 
$5,000 PER COMMISSIONER/$15,000 MEMBER 

AGGREGATE/$500,000 ANNUAL POOL AGGREGATE 

 SEXUAL HARASSMENT INCLUDED 

 ERRORS & OMISSIONS & WRONGFUL ACTS INCLUDED 
 

ASSOCIATION AGGREGATE $100,000,000 FOR ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES 

*COMMUNICABLE DISEASE SUB-LIMIT & AGGREGATES APPLIES TO ALL LIABILITY COVERAGES COMBINED



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

17 

 
     -  Auto Liability 

AUTO LIABILITY 
 

 AUTO LIABILITY 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

COVERAGE FORM OCCURRENCE 

DEDUCTIBLE $0 

LIMITS 

LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (INCLUSIVE OF SIR) $1,000,000 

COVERAGE [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 PERSONAL INJURY PROTECTION STATUTORY 

 PHYSICAL DAMAGE 
• COLLISION 

• COMPREHENSIVE 

 

EXCLUDED - COVERED UNDER PROPERTY 
EXCLUDED - COVERED UNDER PROPERTY 

 HIRED/BORROWED LIABILITY INCLUDED 

 HIRED/BORROWED PHYSICAL DAMAGE INCLUDED 

 NON-OWNED LIABILITY INCLUDED 

 NON-OWNED PHYSICAL DAMAGE INCLUDED 

EXCLUSIONS [INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE EXCLUDED – COVERED UNDER PROPERTY 

 MEDICAL PAYMENTS EXCLUDED 

 UNINSURED/UNDERINSURED MOTORIST EXCLUDED 

 
ASSOCIATION AGGREGATE $100,000,000 FOR ALL LIABILITY COVERAGE 

 

 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

20 

     -  Workers’ Compensation 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
 
 

 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

RENEWAL 10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

COMPANY PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

DEDUCTIBLE $0 

LIMITS 
 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

• MEDICAL 

• DISABILITY 

• DEATH 

 
STATUTORY 

 EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY 
• EACH ACCIDENT 
• EACH EMPLOYEE FOR DISEASE 

 
$2,000,000 
$2,000,000 

TERMS & CONDITIONS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 

 BROAD FORM ALL STATES INCLUDED 

 MARITIME COVERAGE ENDORSEMENT INCLUDED 

 VOLUNTARY COMPENSATION ENDORSEMENT INCLUDED 

ANNUAL POLICY AUDIT 

 COMPOSITE RATE* 0.0133057 

 
*PLEASE NOTE THE WC COVERAGE PERIOD WILL BE AUDITED PER THE COMPOSITE RATE SHOWN ABOVE 

PER DOLLAR OF PAYROLL ON THE TOTAL WC PREMIUM, 
 
 

 

 
CLASS CODE 

 
DESCRIPTION 

 
2024 – 2025  

ESTIMATED PAYROLL 

  

7403 AVIATION - ALL OTHER EMPLOYEES & DRIVERS $342,733 

7704 FIREFIGHTERS & DRIVERS $115,136 

8810 CLERICAL OFFICE EMPLOYEES $595,408 

TOTAL PAYROLL $1,053,277 

 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 
 

21 

     -  Crime (Optional) 

CRIME (OPTIONAL) 
 

 CRIME 

RENEWAL 

10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

COMPANY  NATIONAL UNION INSURANCE COMPANY 

NAMED INSURED  PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

DEDUCTIBLE  $1,000 

LIMITS 

 EMPLOYEE THEFT‐PER LOSS COVERAGE  $1,000,000 

 FORGERY OR ALTERATION  $1,000,000 

 INSIDE PREMISES‐THEFT OF MONEY & 

SECURITIES 
$1,000,000 

 INSIDE PREMISES‐ROBBERY, SAFE BURGLARY‐ 
OTHER PROP 

$1,000,000 

 OUTSIDE THE PREMISES  $1,000,000 

 COMPUTER FRAUD  $1,000,000 

 FUNDS TRANSFER FRAUD  $1,000,000 

 MONEY ORDERS AND COUNTERFEIT PAPER 
CURRENCY 

$1,000,000 

 IMPERSONATION FRAUD/ SOCIAL 
ENGINEERING 

$100,000 

CONDITIONS [NOT ALL INCLUSIVE] 

 BONDED EMPLOYEES  INCLUDED 

 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

22 

     -  Cyber Liability (Optional) 

CYBER LIABILITY (OPTIONAL) 
 

 CYBER LIABILITY 

RENEWAL 

10/01/2024 TO 10/01/2025 

CARRIER  GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCE 

NAMED INSURED  PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA 

COVERAGE FORM  CLAIMS MADE 

RETROACTIVE DATE  10/01/2024 

DEDUCTIBLE  $10,000 

LIMITS 

LIMIT OF LIABILITY  $1,000,000 

ANNUAL AGGREGATE  $5,000,000 POOL AGGREGATE 

COVERAGE (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO] 

 BUSINESS INCOME/EXTRA EXPENSE  INCLUDED 

 CYBER EXTORTION THREATS  INCLUDED 

 MEDIA LIABILITY  INCLUDED 

 PUBLIC RELATIONS EXPENSE  INCLUDED 

 REPLACEMENT/RESTORATION OF ELECTRONIC 
DATA 

INCLUDED 

 SECURITY BREACH EXPENSE  INCLUDED 

 SECURITY BREACH LIABILITY [INCLUDES 
REGULATORY FINES/PENALTIES AND PCI 
FINES] 

 

INCLUDED 

 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

23 

Package Policy 
 

 

PROPERTY & CASUALTY 

COVERAGES 
PREMIUM BREAKDOWN 

2024 – 2025 

PRM PROPERTY $318,278 

PRM EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN $4,699 

PRM GL/LEL/AL/E&O $27,934 

PRM WORKERS’ COMPENSATION $14,015 
   

PREFERRED MEMBER PARTICIPATION 

CREDIT 
 

TOTAL $364,926 
  
  

AGENT FEE $54,738 

  

GRAND TOTAL $419,664 
 
 

A NEW PREFERRED MEMBER JOINING PRM SHALL REMAIN A MEMBER FOR AN INITIAL 
TWO-YEAR TERM. A NEW PREFERRED MEMBER’S RATES ARE GUARANTEED FOR 
THEIR INITIAL TWO-YEAR TERM. THE INITIAL TWO-YEAR TERM GUARANTEES RATES, 
NOT PREMIUMS, WILL REMAIN THE SAME FOR THE 10/1/2024 TO 10/1/2026 COVERAGE 
PERIOD [COVERAGE PERIOD (I)10/1/2024 12:01AM TO 10/1/2025 12:01AM (II)10/1/2025 
12:01AM TO 10/1/2026 12:01AM].  
 
THIS WARRANTS THAT YOU HAVE NO KNOWLEDGE OF ANY CLAIM, OR INCIDENT THAT 
MAY RESULT IN A CLAIM, THAT HAS NOT BEEN REPORTED TO THE INSURANCE 
CARRIER. 
 
IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT REFERENCED PROPOSAL PROVIDES ONLY A 
SUMMARY OF THE INSURANCE PROGRAM OPTIONS OFFERED. THE ACTUAL POLICIES 
WILL CONTAIN THE COMPLETE TERMS, CONDITIONS, DEDUCTIBLES, EXCLUSIONS, 
ETCETERA. PLEASE REVIEW POLICY LANGUAGE FOR A FULL UNDERSTANDING OF 
PURCHASED PROGRAM. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

24 

 

Payment Plans 

Carrier / Payable Carrier Line Of Coverage 
Payment 
Schedule 

Payment 
Method 

Public Risk Management of Florida             
(PRM of Florida) 

Package Policy 

- Property 

- Equipment Breakdown 

- Public Officials/ Employment Practices Liability 

- Auto Liability 

- Workers' Compensation  

- Crime 

- Cyber Liability 

Annual or 
Quarterly 
Installments 

 

 

Except 
Agent fee 
is Annual 
Payment 

 

Direct Bill 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

25 

 

Proposal Disclosures 
The following disclosures are hereby made a part of this proposal. Please review these disclosures prior to signing the Client Authorization to 
Bind or e-mail confirmation. 

 

Proposal Disclaimer 

IMPORTANT: The proposal and/or any executive summaries outline certain terms and conditions of the insurance proposed by the insurers, 
based on the information provided by your company.  The insurance policies themselves must be read to fully understand the terms, coverages, 
exclusions, limitations and/or conditions of the actual policy contract of insurance.  Policy forms will be made available upon request.  We make 
no warranties with respect to policy limits or coverage considerations of the carrier. 
 
Compensation Disclosure 

1. Gallagher Companies are primarily compensated from the usual and customary commissions, fees or, where permitted, a combination of 
both, for brokerage and servicing of insurance policies, annuity contracts, guarantee contracts and surety bonds (collectively “insurance 
coverages”) handled for a client’s account, which may vary based on market conditions and the insurance product placed for the client. 
 
2. In placing, renewing, consulting on or servicing your insurance coverages, Gallagher companies may participate in contingent and 
supplemental commission arrangements with intermediaries and insurance companies that provide for additional compensation if certain 
underwriting, profitability, volume or retention goals are achieved. Such goals are typically based on the total amount of certain insurance 
coverages placed by Gallagher with the insurance company, not on an individual policy basis.  As a result, Gallagher may be considered to have 
an incentive to place your insurance coverages with a particular insurance company. If you do not wish to have your commercial insurance 
placement included in consideration for additional compensation, contact your producer or service team for an Opt-out form. 
 
3. Gallagher Companies may receive investment income on fiduciary funds temporarily held by them, or from obtaining or generating premium 
finance quotes, unless prohibited by law. 
 
4. Gallagher Companies may also access or have an ownership interest in other facilities, including wholesalers, reinsurance intermediaries, 
captive managers, underwriting managers and others that act as intermediaries for both Gallagher and other brokers in the insurance 
marketplace some of which may earn and retain customary brokerage commission and fees for their work. 
 
If you have specific questions about any compensation received by Gallagher and its affiliates in relation to your insurance placements, please 
contact your Gallagher representative for more details. 
 
TRIA/TRIPRA Disclaimer 

If this proposal contains options to purchase TRIA/TRIPRA coverage, the proposed TRIA/TRIPRA program may not cover all terrorism losses. 
While the amendments to TRIA eliminated the distinction between foreign and domestic acts of terrorism, a number of lines of coverage 
excluded under the amendments passed in 2005 remain excluded including commercial automobile, burglary and theft insurance; surety 
insurance, farm owners multiple perils and professional liability (although directors and officers liability is specifically included). If such excluded 
coverages are required, we recommend that you consider purchasing a separate terrorism policy. Please note that a separate terrorism policy 
for these excluded coverages may be necessary to satisfy loan covenants or other contractual obligations. TRIPRA includes a $100 billion cap 
on insurers' aggregate liability. 
 
TRIPRA is set to expire on December 31, 2027. There is no certainty of extension, thus the coverage provided by your insurers may or may not 
extend beyond December 31, 2027. In the event you have loan covenants or other contractual obligations requiring that TRIA/TRIPRA be 
maintained throughout the duration of your policy period, we recommend that a separate ""Stand Alone"" terrorism policy be purchased to satisfy 
those obligations. 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

26 

Property Estimator Disclaimer 

These property values were obtained using a desktop Property Estimator software operated by non-appraisal professionals. These property 
values represent general estimates which are not to be considered a certified appraisal. These property values include generalities and 
assumptions that may produce inaccurate values for specific structures. 
 
Terms and Conditions 

It is important that we clearly outline the nature of our mutual relationship. The following terms and conditions (these “Terms”) govern your 
relationship with Gallagher unless you have separately entered into a written services agreement with Gallagher relative to the policies and 
services outlined in this Proposal, in which case that services agreement will govern and control with respect to any conflicts with these Terms. 
These Terms will become effective upon your execution of the Client Authorization to Bind Coverage (the “CAB”) included in this Proposal and 
shall survive for the duration of your relationship with Gallagher relative to the policies placed pursuant to the CAB or otherwise at your request. 
 
Services 

Gallagher will represent and assist you in all discussions and transactions with insurance companies relating to the lines of insurance coverage 
set forth in the CAB and any other lines of insurance coverage with which you request Gallagher’s assistance. Gallagher will consult with you 
regarding any matters involving these or other coverages for which you have engaged Gallagher. You have the sole discretion for approving any 
insurance policies placed, as well as all other material decisions involving your risk management, risk transfer and/or loss prevention needs. 
 
Although you are responsible for notifying applicable insurance companies directly in connection with any claims, demands, suits, notices of 
potential claims or any other matters as required by the terms and conditions of your policies, Gallagher will assist you in determining applicable 
claim reporting requirements. 
 
Treatment of Information 

Gallagher understands the need to protect the confidentiality and security of your confidential and sensitive information and strives to comply 
with applicable data privacy and security laws.  Your confidential and sensitive information will be protected by Gallagher and only used to 
perform services for you; provided that Gallagher may disclose and transfer your information to our affiliates, agents or vendors that have a need 
to know such information in connection with the provision of such services (including insurance markets, as necessary, for marketing, quoting, 
placing and/or servicing insurance coverages).  We may also disclose such information as required by applicable data protection laws or the 
order of any court or tribunal, subject to our providing you with prior notice as permitted by law. 
 
We will (i) implement appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards to protect personal information; (ii) timely report security 
incidents involving personal information to affected parties and/or regulatory bodies; (iii) create and maintain required policies and procedures; 
and (iv) comply with data subjects’ rights, as applicable.  To the extent applicable under associated data protection laws, you are a “business” or 
“controller” and Gallagher is a “service provider” or “data processor.” You will ensure that any information provided to Gallagher has been 
provided with any required notices and that you have obtained all required consents, if any and where required, or are otherwise authorized to 
transfer all information to Gallagher and enable Gallagher to process the information for the purposes described in this Proposal and as set forth 
in Gallaher’s Privacy Policy located at https://www.ajg.com/privacy-policy/. Gallagher may update its Privacy Policy from time to time and any 
updates will be posted to such site. 
 
Dispute Resolution 

Gallagher does not expect that it will ever have a formal dispute with any of its clients.  However, in the event that one should arise, we should 
each strive to achieve a fair, expedient and efficient resolution and we’d like to clearly outline the resolution process. 
 
A. If the parties have a dispute regarding Gallagher’s services or the relationship governed by this Proposal (“Dispute”), each party agrees to 
resolve that Dispute by mediation. If mediation fails to resolve the Dispute, you and Gallagher agree to binding arbitration.  Each party waives all 
rights to commence litigation in court to resolve a Dispute, and specifically waives all rights to pursue relief by class action or mass action in 
court or through arbitration.  However, the parties do not waive the ability to seek a court order of injunction in aid of the mediation and 
arbitration required by these Terms. 
 
B. The party asserting a Dispute must provide a written notice (“Notice”) of the claim to the other party and to the American Arbitration 
Association (“AAA”) in accordance with its Commercial Arbitration Rules and Mediation Procedures. All Dispute resolutions will take place in 
Chicago, IL, unless you and Gallagher agree to another location. The parties will equally divide all costs of the mediation and arbitration 
proceedings and will each pay their own attorneys’ fees.  All matters will be before a neutral, impartial and disinterested mediator or arbitrator(s) 
that have at least 20 years’ experience in commercial and insurance coverage disputes. 
 
C. Mediation will occur within sixty (60) days of filing the Notice with the AAA. Mediation results will be reduced to a memorandum of 
understanding signed by you, Gallagher and the mediator.  A Dispute that is not resolved in mediation will commence to binding arbitration.  For 
Disputes in excess of $500,000, either party may elect to have the Dispute heard by a panel of three (3) arbitrators. The award of the 
arbitrator(s) must be accompanied by a reasoned opinion prepared and signed by the arbitrator(s).  Except as may be required by law, neither 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

27 

you, Gallagher, nor a mediator or arbitrator may disclose the existence, content or results of any Dispute or its dispute resolution proceeding 
without the prior written consent of both you and Gallagher. 
 
Electronic Delivery 

In lieu of receiving documents in paper format, you agree, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to accept electronic delivery of any documents 
that Gallagher may be required to deliver to you (including, but not limited to, insurance policies and endorsements, account statements and all 
other agreements, forms and communications) in connection with services provided by Gallagher.  Electronic delivery of a document to you may 
be made via electronic mail or by other electronic means, including posting documents to a secure website. 
 
Miscellaneous Terms 

Gallagher is engaged to perform services as an independent contractor and not as your employee or agent, and Gallagher will not be operating 
in a fiduciary capacity. 
 
Where applicable, insurance coverage placements and other services may require the payment of federal excise taxes, surplus lines taxes, 
stamping or other fees to the Internal Revenue Service, various State(s) departments of revenue, state regulators, boards or associations.  In 
such cases, you will be responsible for the payment of the taxes and/or fees, which Gallagher will separately identify on related invoices.   
 
The Proposal and these Terms are governed by the laws of the State of Illinois, without regard to its conflict of law rules.  
 
If an arbitrator/court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision of these Terms is void or unenforceable, that provision will be 
severed, and the arbitrator/court will replace it with a valid and enforceable provision that most closely approximates the original intent, and the 
remainder of these Terms will remain in effect. 
 
Except to the extent in conflict with a services agreement that you may enter into with Gallagher, these Terms and the remainder of the Proposal 
constitute the entire agreement between you and Gallagher with respect to the subject matter of the Proposal, and supersede all prior 
negotiations, agreements and understandings as to such matters. 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

28 

 

Coverages for Consideration 
Overview 

Gallagher recommends that you consider purchasing the following additional coverages for which you have exposure. A 
Proposal for any of the coverages below can be provided.  

 

See Commercial Coverage Review Summary 

 

Please note the recommendations and considerations summarized in this section are not intended to identify all potential 
exposures. Gallagher is not an expert in all aspects of your business and assumes no responsibility to independently 
investigate the risks your business faces. Gallagher has relied upon the information you provided in making our insurance 
Proposals.  If you are interested in pursuing additional coverages other than those listed above, please list the additional 
coverages in the Client Authorization to Bind. 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

29 

 

Claims Reporting By Policy 
Immediately report all claims. Each insurer requires notice of certain types of claims depending on the potential exposure or 
particular injury types. It is important to thoroughly review your policy to ensure you are reporting particular incidents and 
claims, based upon the insurer’s policy requirements. 

If you are using a third party administrator (“TPA”), your TPA may or may not report claims to an insurer on your behalf. 
Although we will assist you where requested, it is important that you understand whether your TPA will be completing this 
notification.  

 

Reporting to Gallagher or Assistance in Reporting 

 All Lines of Coverage EXCEPT as noted below in Direct Reporting 

 Gallagher Aerospace - Ormond Beach 

 Phone: 386-672-6210 

 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

30 

Binding Requirements 

Coverage (Issuing Carrier) Binding Requirements 

Package 
Public Risk Management of Florida 

- Completed Public Risk Management Application 

- Executed Public Risk Management By-Laws 

- Workers' Compensation 

 

- Florida Drug-Free Workplace Form 

- Safety Premium Credit Form 

Signed Application 

- Property Including Inland Marine 
- Signed Property Application 

‐ Signed SOV 

- Business Automobile 

- Signed Application 

- Signed Uninsured Motorist Rejection Form 

- Signed PIP Form 

- Public Officials Management and  
  Employment Practices 

No Known Loss Letter  

- Crime - Completed and signed Application 

- Cyber Liability - Completed and signed Application 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

31 

Bindable Quotations & Compensation Disclosure Schedule 
Client Name: St Johns County Airport Authority 

 

Coverage Insurance Company 
Wholesaler, MGA, or 
Intermediary Name1 

Est. Annual 
Premium2 

Comm. % 
or Fee3 

Gallagher U.S. Owned 
Wholesaler, MGA, or 

Intermediary % and/or 
Fee % 

Package Public Risk Management of Florida World Risk Management $364,926 $54,738 

 

-  Workers' 
Compensation  

-  Property Including 
Inland Marine 

-  Business Automobile 

-  Public Officials 
Management and 
Employment Practices 

 - Crime 

 - Cyber Liability 

 

1 We were able to obtain more advantageous terms and conditions for you through an intermediary/ wholesaler. 

2 If the premium is shown as an indication: The premium indicated is an estimate provided by the market. The actual premium and acceptance of the coverage requested will be determined by the 
market after a thorough review of the completed application. 

  * A verbal quotation was received from this carrier. We are awaiting a quotation in writing. 

3 The commission rate is a percentage of annual premium excluding taxes & fees. 

  * Gallagher is receiving ___% commission on this policy. The fee due Gallagher will be reduced by the amount of the commissions received. 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

32 

 

Summary of Significant Coverage Changes 

 

Important: 

 

This Highlight is only an outline of the changes compared to your current coverage since your last renewal.  It does not include 
all of the changes in terms, coverages, exclusions, limitations and conditions.  YOU MUST READ THE POLICY FOR THOSE 
DETAILS. 

 

Line of Coverage Expiring Proposed 

Package   

Workers' Compensation  
Preferred Governmental 

Insurance Trust 
Public Risk Management of 

Florida 

Payroll:                                 

       Code 7403:                    $389,960 $342,273 

       Code 7704: $111,436 $115,136 

       Code 8810:                    $564,638 $595,408 

Experience Mod:                               .84 TBD 

     Rates   

        Code 7403:                            3.40 Composite Rated:   
0.0133057         Code 7704: 4.46 

        Code 8810:                                .15 

Employers Liability Limit:    $1,000,000 $2,000,000 

Property 
Preferred Governmental 

Insurance Trust 
Public Risk Management of 

Florida 

Blanket Building & Personal Property $44,376,700 $55,819,980 

Deductibles   

- All Other Peril $5,000 $1,000 

- Wind / Hail 
5%, subject to a $35,000 

minimum 

5% 

No Minimum 

Valuation *Stated Amount 
Replacement Cost/No 

coinsurance 

*Stated Amount Definition:  The Lesser of: 

The cost actually and necessarily extended to repair 
the damaged property; or the cost actually and 
necessarily extended to replace or rebuild with new 
materials of like size, kind and quality; or the selling 
price on the date of the loss of property, other than 
stock, offered for sale, less all saved expenses; or the 
value reported on the applicable schedule of values 

  



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

33 

Line of Coverage Expiring Proposed 

Business Income Agreed Amount Actual Loss Sustained to Limit 

Equipment Breakdown Not Included Included 

Flood Limit Not Included $50,000,000 

- Deductible N/A $1,000, All except SFHA 
(Special Flood Hazard Area)  

Excess NFIP National Flood 
Insurance Program $500,000 

whether purchased or not. 

Earthquake Not Included $50,000,000 

Equipment   

Deductibles   

- All Perils Not Included $1,000 

- Named Windstorm Not Included N/A 

- Flood sublimit Not Included $5,000,000 

- Deductible Not Included $1,000 

- Earthquake sublimit Not Included $5,000,000 

- Deductible Not Included $1,000 

Business Automobile 
Preferred Governmental 

Insurance Trust 
Public Risk Management of 

Florida 

- Medical Payment                                       $5,000 Not Available 

- Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Coverage    $100,000 Not Available 

- Comprehensive & Collision Coverage      Covered under Auto Covered under Property 

- Comprehensive & Collision Deductibles     $1,000 
$1,000 

- Hired Auto Physical Damage   

      Limit          $35,000 $1,000,000 

          Deductibles     

‐ Comprehensive           $1,000 $1,000 

‐ Collision                    $1,000 $1,000 

Public Officials Management and Employment 
Practices 

Preferred Governmental 
Insurance Trust 

Public Risk Management of 
Florida 

Public Officials/ Employment Practices Limit 

 
$1,000,000/$1,000,000 

 

$1,000,000 / $3,000,000 

 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

34 

 
Line of Coverage Expiring Proposed 

Deductibles   

‐ Public Officials $15,000 Nil 

‐ Employment Practices $25,000 Nil 

‐ Sublimits   

‐ Bert Harris N/A $300,000 

‐ Inverse Condemnation $50,000 $100,000 

‐ Communicable Disease N/A 
$200,000 per claimant $300,000 
per occurrence $3,000,000 pool 

aggregate 

‐ Ethics Violation Reimbursement N/A 

$5,000 per commissioner 
$15,000 per member aggregate  

$500,000 pool aggregate 

Retroactive Dates   

‐ Public Officials Full Prior Acts 10/1/2011 

‐ Employment Practices Full Prior Acts 10/1/2011 

‐ Sublimits Full Prior Acts 10/  /2015 

‐ Bert Harris Full Prior Acts 10/1/2015 

‐ Inverse Condemnation Full Prior Acts 10/1/2015 

‐    

Public Entity – Additional Coverage 
Deadly Weapon Protection 

Coverage 
Active Shooter & Malicious 

Attack 

‐ Limit 
$1,000,000 Per Event $2,000,000 Per 

Occurrence/Aggregate 

‐    

Herbicide/Pesticide $1,000,000 No Exclusion 

‐    

Chubb Aviation General Liability   

‐ Skydiving Exclusion Exclusion included  Exclusion Removed 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

35 

Premium Summary 

The estimated program cost for the options are outlined in the following table: 

Line of Coverage Expiring Proposed 

  Various Public Risk Management of Florida 

Package 

- Workers’ Compensation 

- Property including Inland Marine 

- Business Automobile 

- Public Officials Management and 
Employment Practices 

Premium $576,156.30 $364,926.00 

Estimated Cost* $576,156.30 $419,664.00 

Total Program Cost $576,156.30 $419,664.00 

 
 

PRE-PAID POLICIES IN FORCE 

Line of Coverage Expiring Renewal Options 

 ACE American Insurance Company ACE American Insurance Company 

Environmental Liability 

5/6/24 - 5/6/25 

Premium $4,236.00 $4,300.00 

Estimated Cost* $4,320.72 $4,441.98 

 
ACE Property & Casualty 

Insurance Company 
ACE Property & Casualty 

Insurance Company 

Airport General Liability 

8/1/22 - 8/1/25 

Premium $10,557.00 $10,557.00 

Estimated Cost* $10,557.00 $10,557.00 

Subtotal $14,877.72 $14,998.98 

Total Program Cost $14,877.72 $434,662.98 

*Estimated Cost includes all taxes, fees, surcharges and TRIA premium (if applicable) 

 
 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

36 

 

 

Quote from Public Risk Management of Florida is valid until 10/1/2024 

Quote from Selective Insurance Company of the Southeast is valid until 
10/1/2024 

 

Premiums are due and payable as billed and may be financed, subject to 
acceptance by an approved finance company. Following acceptance, completion 
(and signature) of a premium finance agreement with the specified down 
payment is required.  Note: Unless prohibited by law, Gallagher may earn 
compensation for this optional value-added service. 

 

Gallagher is responsible for the placement of the following lines of coverage: 

Workers' Compensation  

Property Including Inland Marine 

Business Automobile 

Public Officials Management and Employment Practices 

Airport Liability 

Builders Risk 

Environmental Liability 

Flood 

Crime 

Cyber Liability 

 

 

It is understood that any other type of exposure/coverage is either self-insured or 
placed by another brokerage firm other than Gallagher. If you need help in 
placing other lines of coverage or covering other types of exposures, please 
contact your Gallagher representative. 

 

  



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

37 

 

Client Authorization to Bind Coverage 
After careful consideration of Gallagher's proposal dated 8/28/2024, we accept the following coverage(s). Please check the 
desired coverage(s) and note any coverage amendments below: 

 

  Coverage/Carrier TRIA Description/Major Differences 

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  Package  Included*  

 
Public Risk Management of 
Florida 

 

$ 364,926.00 Premium  

$   54,738.00 Agent Fee  

$ 419,664.00 Total 

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  

Package - Crime (Optional) 

 

 

Public Risk Management of 
Florida 

$2,556.00 Premium 

$   228.00 Agent Fee 

$2,784.00 Total 

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  

Package - Cyber Liability 
(Optional) 

  

Public Risk Management of 
Florida 

 
$6,500.00 Premium 

 

 

Aviation General Liability    

ACE Property & Casualty 
Insurance Company 

  

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  
- Including War, Hijacking & 
Other Perils 

 $1,056.00 Premium 

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  

- Excess Automobile: 

 $5,000,000 excess of 
$1,000,000 

 $5,000.00 Premium 

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  

- Excess Employers’ Liability 

 $7,000,000 excess of 
$2,000,000 

 $3,500.00 Premium 

☐ Accept ☐ Reject  
- Extend Policy to expire 
10/1/2025 (can’t process until 
end of policy term) 

 $1,763.00 Premium 

 *For this coverage, TRIA cannot be rejected 

 

 

Additional Recommended Coverages 

Gallagher recommends that you purchase the following additional coverages for which you have exposure.  By checking the 
box(es) below, you are requesting that Gallagher provide you with a Proposal for this coverage. By not requesting a Proposal for 
this coverage, you assume the risk of any uncovered loss. 

 

Other Coverages to Consider 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

38 

 

See Commercial Coverage Review Summary 

 

The above coverage(s) does not necessarily represent the entirety of available insurance products. If you are interested in 
pursuing additional coverages other than those listed in the Additional Recommended Coverages, please list below: 

 

 

 

Coverage Amendments and Notes: 

 

 

 

Exposures and Values 

You confirm the payroll, values, schedules, and any other information pertaining to your operations, and submitted to the 
underwriters, were compiled from information provided by you.  If no updates were provided to Gallagher, the values, exposures 
and operations used were based on the expiring policies. You acknowledge it is your responsibility to notify Gallagher of any 
material change in your operations or exposures. 

 

Additional Terms and Disclosures  

Gallagher is not an expert in all aspects of your business. Gallagher’s Proposals for insurance are based upon the information 
concerning your business that was provided to Gallagher by you. Gallagher expects the information you provide is true, correct 
and complete in all material respects. Gallagher assumes no responsibility to independently investigate the risks that may be 
facing your business, but rather have relied upon the information you provide to Gallagher in making our insurance Proposals. 

 

Gallagher's liability to you arising from any of Gallagher’s acts or omissions will not exceed $20 million in the aggregate. The 
parties each will only be liable for actual damages incurred by the other party, and will not be liable for any indirect, special, 
exemplary, consequential, reliance or punitive damages.  No claim or cause of action, regardless of form (tort, contract, 
statutory, or otherwise), arising out of, relating to or in any way connected with the Proposal, any of Gallagher’s services or your 
relationship with Gallagher may be brought by either party any later than two (2) years after the accrual of the claim or cause of 
action. 

 

Gallagher has established security controls to protect Client confidential information from unauthorized use or disclosure. For 
additional information, please review Gallagher’s Privacy Policy located at https://www.ajg.com/privacy-policy/. 

 



 

 

Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority 

39 

 

You have read, understand and agree that the information contained in the Proposal and all documents attached to and 
incorporated into the Proposal, is correct and has been disclosed to you prior to authorizing Gallagher to bind coverage and/or 
provide services to you. By signing below, or authorizing Gallagher to bind your insurance coverage through email when 
allowed, you acknowledge you have reviewed and agree with terms, conditions and disclosures contained in the Proposal. 

 

By:         _______________________________________________________________________ 

Print Name (Specify Title) 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Company 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

Signature 

 

Date:      _______________________________________________________________________ 

 



THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

A CONTRACT AND BY-LAWS

FOR

PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA

(PRM)

AS AMENDED AND RESTATED THROUGH APRIL 27, 2018



THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

(A CONTRACT AND BY-LAWS FOR PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA) 

(PRM)

I N D E X

ARTICLE # DESCRIPTION PAGE #

Article 1 Name and Duration 1

Article 2 Definitions and Purpose 1 - 3

Article 3 Power and Duties 3 - 4

Article 4 Participation and Term 5 - 6

Article 5 Commencement of the Pool 6

Article 6 Board of Directors of the Pool 6 - 9

Article 7 Board of Directors Meetings 9 - 10

Article 8 Pool Officers 10 - 11

Article 9 Finances and Risk Management Pool 11 - 12

Article 10 Excess Insurance 13

Article 11 Obligations of Members 13 - 15

Article 12 Liability of Board of Directors or 15
Officers of the Pool

Article 13 Additional Insurance 15

Article 14 Settlements 15

Article 15 Coverage & Indemnity Dispute Resolution 16

Article 16 Contractual Obligation 16 - 17

Article 17 Expulsion or Termination of Members 17 - 18

Article 18 Special Provisions for Deferred Funding 18

Article 19 Termination of Pool 18



2

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

AND BY-LAWS

OF

PUBLIC RISK MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA

(PRM)

BE IT KNOWN THAT:

The below named public agency or agencies of the State of Florida for the purpose of 
forming a risk management and self-insurance association pursuant to the terms of Florida 
Statutes Sections 768.28(16)(a), 440.57, and 163.01, Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969, 
do bind themselves contractually to and adopt these Articles of Association and By-Laws.

Article 1 - Name and Duration

1.1 Name.  The name of this association shall be Public Risk Management of Florida, 
referred to hereinafter as the Pool.

Article 2 - Definitions and Purpose

2.1. Definitions.  As used in this agreement, the following terms shall have the 
meaning hereinafter set out:

"Annual Payments": The amount each Member must annually pay to fully fund the costs 
of the full operation of the Pool.

"Aggregate Excess Insurance": Stop Loss Insurance purchased by the Pool from insurance 
companies and/or Lloyd’s of London, or other similar entities, approved by the Board of 
Directors, or any committee appointed by the Board for such purpose, to protect the Pool from an 
accumulation of losses in any policy year should the “Loss Fund” be exhausted.  Once the 
“Aggregate Excess Insurance” is triggered, any further losses within the “Self Insured Retention” 
will be paid by this coverage.

“Fiscal Year”: The fiscal year of the Pool shall begin on October 1st and end on
September 30th.

"Joint Self-Insurance" or "Self-Funded": A self-insurance or self-funded program in 
which Members agree to annual payments to fully fund the operations of the Risk Management 
Pool.

“Loss Fund”: The fund established to pay claims occurring within the “Self Insured 
Retention.”  The “Loss Fund” represents the maximum amount for which the Pool is exposed in 
a single policy period.



3

“Maintenance Deductible”: The amount paid by the “Member” before the loss is paid by 
the “Self Insured Retention.”  This is a nominal amount designed to protect the “Loss Fund” 
from small claims.  The “Maintenance Deductible” applies only to property, automobile physical 
damage and crime losses.”

“Member Deductible”:  The portion or monetary amount that PRM will invoice member 
as mutually agreed.

“Member Self-Insured Retention”: A layer of assumed risk where the Member self-
insures a pre-determined amount of loss per occurrence.

"Members": The public agencies of the State of Florida which initially or later enter into 
the intergovernmental association established by this Intergovernmental Agreement.

“Multi-Loss Coverage”: This multiple loss protection limits a loss involving more than 
one line of coverage from one occurrence (i.e. property, liability, workers’ compensation) to one 
“Self Insured Retention.”

“Policy Year”:  The policy year of the Pool shall be from the date of inception of 
coverage to the termination of said coverage, or on other dates as approved by the membership in 
attendance at a scheduled meeting of the membership.

"Pool": Public Risk Management of Florida established pursuant to the Constitution and 
the Statutes of the State of Florida by this Intergovernmental Agreement.

“Preferred Member/membership”: A Member with the Pool, who finds several benefits in 
pooling, including the multiple benefits to be achieved in participating in all available lines of 
coverage.

"Risk Management": A program attempting to reduce or limit casualty and property 
losses to Members and injuries to employees caused by or arising out of the operations of 
Members.  Where claims arise the Pool will provide processing of claims, investigation, defense 
and settlement within the financial limits of the Pool as established in accordance with this 
Intergovernmental Agreement and will tabulate such claims, costs and losses.

"Risk Management Pool": A fund of public monies established by the Pool to jointly 
self-insure and self-fund property coverages, general liability, automobile liability, professional 
liability, public officials' liability and workers' compensation, and any other coverage lines 
approved by the Board of Directors.

"Self-Insurance": The decision by a public agency not to purchase insurance coverage for 
risks below certain limits; to seek and maintain immunities provided by law for a noninsured 
public agency; to rely upon its financial capabilities to pay covered losses which occur in case 
third-party claims are held valid and not barred or capped by available immunities: and to 
purchase some insurance to protect against catastrophic or aggregate losses.  The purchase of 
liability insurance by the Pool or any of its Members is not intended to, and does not, waive 
sovereign immunity.  Purchase of liability insurance shall only be pursuant to Florida Statutes, 
which allow for the purchase of insurance by the Pool without the waiver of sovereign immunity 



4

by the Pool or any of the Pool's Members and is not pursuant to any other statute of the State of 
Florida.

“Self Insured Retention”: A layer of assumed risk where the pool or Member self-insures 
a pre-determined amount of loss per occurrence.

"Specific Excess Insurance": Insurance purchased by the Pool from insurance companies 
and/or Lloyd’s of London, approved by the Board of Directors, or any committee appointed by 
the Board for such purpose, that provides catastrophe coverage up to the limit(s) chosen by the 
Pool.

“Standard Member/membership”: A Member with the Pool, who finds several benefits in 
pooling and who values pricing and the ability to not participate in all available lines of coverage.

2.2. Purpose: The Pool is a cooperative agency voluntarily established by Members as 
set forth in Florida Statutes Sections 163.01, 768.28 and 440.57 for the purpose of seeking the 
prevention or lessening of casualty and property losses to Members and injuries to persons or 
employees which might result in claims being made against Members.  The purpose of this Pool 
is to carry out and effect the agreed upon functions and purposes of this Intergovernmental 
Agreement as stated herein.

It is the intent of the Members of this Pool to create an entity, which will administer a 
Risk Management Pool and utilize such funds to defend and protect, in accordance with this 
Intergovernmental Agreement, any Member of the Pool against liability for a covered loss.  This 
Agreement shall constitute the substance of a contract among the Members.

All funds contained within the Risk Management Pool are funds directly derived from its 
Members who are public agencies of the State of Florida.  It is the intent of the Members in 
entering into this Intergovernmental Agreement that, to the fullest extent possible, the scope of 
Risk Management undertaken by them through a Joint Self-Insurance or Self-funded program 
using governmental funds shall not waive, on behalf of any Member or such Member's 
employees as defined in Florida Statutes Section 768.28, any defenses or immunities therein 
provided, or provided by the laws of the State of Florida.  The Pool and the Members of this Pool 
intend to effect no waiver of sovereign immunities through their use of public funds retained 
within the Risk Management Pool.  Such funds being utilized to protect against risks in 
accordance with Florida Statutes Section 768.28 are not intended to constitute the existence, 
issuance or purchase of a policy for insurance.  This Intergovernmental Agreement is not to be 
considered such as would cause this Pool to be treated as an "insurer" within the meaning of any 
legislation giving risk to liability or applicability to "insurer", for damages, costs, fees or 
expenses, etc., under Florida Statutes Sections 624.155, 626.9541, 626.9561, 627.426, 627.428, 
or other statutes applicable to Public Entity Self Insurance in the State of Florida.

2.3 Non- Assessable: Public Risk Management is a non-assessable pool.



5

Article 3 - Power and Duties

3.1. Powers: The powers of the Pool to perform and accomplish the functions and 
purposes set forth herein, within the budgetary limits and procedures set forth in this 
Intergovernmental Agreement, shall be as follows:

3.1.1. To establish By-Laws and Amendments to By-Laws, and operational 
procedures governing the operations of the Pool which are consistent with this 
Intergovernmental Agreement as set forth in Florida Statutes Sections 768.28, 163.01 and 
440.57, and to not waive any sovereign immunity not waived statutorily under Florida 
Law, and to expressly negate any past, present, or future waiver of sovereign immunity 
under Florida Statutes, and to continue to negate any waiver of sovereign immunity for 
discretionary and planning functions of government.

3.1.2.  To employ agents and independent contractors and approve the rate of 
compensation, benefits and/or contracts that apply to Pool employees, Pool officers and 
service providers, and to ensure all benefits of Florida Statutes Section 163.01(9)(a) and 
all other applicable Florida Statutes.

3.1.3. To lease real property and to purchase or lease equipment, machinery or 
personal property necessary for the carrying out of the purpose of the Pool.

3.1.4.  To carry out educational and other programs relating to risk reductions.

3.1.5.  To cause the creation of this Pool and see to the collection of funds for the 
continued administration of the Risk Management Pool.

3.1.6.  To purchase Aggregate Excess Insurance, Reinsurance, Excess Property 
Insurance, Excess Workers’ Compensation Insurance, Excess Liability Insurance, 
Pollution Insurance, Boiler & Machinery Insurance and Specific Excess Insurance, and 
any other form of insurance deemed reasonable and necessary by the Board of Directors 
to promote or serve the powers and duties of the Pool to supplement the Risk 
Management Pool without such being a waiver of sovereign immunity under Florida 
Law.

3.1.7. To establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention 
procedures, which shall be followed by the Members.

3.1.8. To provide Risk Management services including the defense of and 
settlement of claims and to have the authority granted by Florida Statutes Section 
768.28(16).

3.1.9. To negate, pursuant to Florida Statutes, any implication of a waiver of 
sovereign immunity, and to negate any waiver of sovereign immunity other than to the 
extent required under Florida Statutes Section 768.28.



6

3.1.10. To act solely within the budgetary limits established by the Members to 
carry out such other activities as are necessarily implied or required to carry out the 
purposes of the Pool.

3.1.11. To sue or be sued as a separate legal entity.

Article 4 - Participation and Term

4.1. Term: The initial term of the Pool shall be from 12:01 a.m. on October 1, 1987 to 
12:01 a.m. September 30, 1989.  After the initial two (2) year term of the Pool, the term shall 
automatically be renewed for an additional term of one (1) year each.  Provided, however, the 
Members may, through the manner provided in Section 6.9.4., terminate the Pool as of the end of
the initial or any additional term during which such action is taken.

4.2. Notice of Intent to Withdraw: So long as the Pool shall continue in existence, any 
current or new Preferred Member joining the Pool shall remain a Member for an initial two-year 
term, except a new Member coming into the Pool after the first day of the policy year shall be 
obligated to be a member for not less than eighteen (18) months.  A new Preferred Member’s 
rates will be guaranteed for their initial term.

Any Member may withdraw from the Pool at the end of the policy year upon serving on 
the Pool at least forty-five (45) days prior with a written Notice of Intent to Withdraw. Such 
notice shall be addressed to the Executive Director of the Pool and shall be accompanied by a 
resolution of the governing body of the Member with intent to withdraw from the Pool. 

4.3. Actual Withdrawal/Required Withdrawal. Any Member who has served the 
Executive Director with prior written notice of its intent to withdraw at least forty-five (45) days
prior to the beginning of the policy year for which the notice to withdraw is applicable, shall 
serve in writing to the Executive Director, no later than ten (10) days prior to the beginning of 
such policy year, a verification as to whether the Member intends to actually withdraw from the 
Pool at the end of the current policy year.  Failure to serve such verification no later than ten (10) 
days prior to the beginning of the policy year for which notice of intent to withdraw is applied, 
shall be deemed a revocation of the prior notice of intent to withdraw; thus, binding the Member 
to the Pool for the ensuing policy year.  An action to expel a Member shall be taken by the 
Executive Board in the manner described in Article 17 hereafter.

4.4. Admission of New Members: The Pool's Executive Board shall establish and 
periodically review standards and the approval process for the admission of new Members.  
Upon approval of these standards and of the approval process for admission by the Board of 
Directors, the Pool's Executive Board may grant or deny admission to proposed new Members 
based upon such criteria.  Consideration of new Members may be communicated to all PRM 
Board Members by the Executive Director for any information or feedback that a Member may 
have regarding the prospective member.



7

Article 5 - Commencement of the Pool

5.1. Commencement Date: The Pool shall commence operations on October 1, 1987.

Article 6 - Board of Directors of the Pool

6.1. The Board: There is hereby established a Board of Directors (sometimes 
hereinafter referred to as the "Board") of the Pool.  Each Member shall appoint one (1) person to 
represent that body (the "Representative") on the Board of Directors along with another person to 
serve as an alternate representative (the "Alternate") when the Representative is unable to carry 
out that Representative's duties.  The Representative and Alternate shall be appointed in writing 
by the governing body of the Member and a copy of the written appointment shall be provided to 
the Executive Director of the Pool.  Once such appointments are made known to the Pool, the 
persons appointed shall remain in office until the Pool receives evidence in writing of the 
appointment of other persons by the Member's governing body.  The Representative and 
Alternate selected must be an employee, an appointed official or elected official of the entity.

6.2. The Chair and Vice Chair: The Board of Directors shall, commencing the 2003 
fiscal year, select a Chair for a three year term. Thereafter, the Board of Directors shall
bi-annually select a Chair to serve a two year term.  The term of office for the Chair shall begin 
on the 1st day of a fiscal year and expire on the last day of a fiscal year.  The Chair shall preside 
at all meetings of the Board.  The Chair shall vote on all matters that come before the Board.  
The Chair shall have such other powers as may be given from time to time by action of the 
Board.

The Board of Directors shall bi-annually select a Vice Chair during the final quarter of 
each two-year term to serve during the subsequent two-year term.  The term of office for the Vice 
Chair shall begin on the first day of a fiscal year and expire on the last day of a fiscal year.  The 
Vice Chair shall carry out all duties of the Chair of the Board during the absence or inability of 
the Chair to perform such duties and shall carry out such other functions as are assigned from 
time to time by the Chair or the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors may from time to 
time appoint other officers of the Board.

6.3. Board Responsibilities.  The Board of Directors shall have the responsibility for: 
(1) hiring of Pool officers, agents/brokers, and independent contractors; (2) setting of 
compensation for Executive Director, agents/brokers and all persons, firms and corporations 
employed by the Pool; (3) approval of amendments to the Intergovernmental Agreement; (4) 
approval of the expulsion of Members, except that the approval may be delegated to the 
Executive Board under Article 4 above, or by such procedures as are contained in the motion 
making delegation; (5) approval and amendment of the annual budget of the Pool; (6) approval of 
the operational procedures developed by the Executive Director; (7) approval of educational and 
other programs relating to risk reduction; (8) approval of reasonable and necessary loss reduction 
and prevention procedures which shall be followed by all Members; and (9) termination of the 
Pool in accordance with this Intergovernmental Agreement.

6.4. Voting: Each Preferred Member shall be entitled to one (1) vote on the Board of 
Directors. Standard Members have no entitlement to any vote on the Board of Directors, or



8

otherwise. Such vote by each Preferred Member may be cast only by the Representative of the
Preferred Member or in the Representative's absence by the Alternate.  No proxy votes or 
absentee votes shall be permitted.  Voting shall be conducted by show of hands or any method 
established by the Board that is consistent with Florida law.  A simple majority vote of those 
Representatives present shall be required to pass on any motion. On such matters, the Chair and 
the Executive Director of the Pool shall cause each Member's Representative and Alternate to 
receive the proposed ballot which will include at a minimum the text of the motion to be voted 
upon and the purpose of such motion.  Only the Representative or the Alternate may vote on such 
ballots (not both).  If both the Alternate and Representative submit ballots, only the 
Representative's ballot will be counted. Favorable votes by a majority of the Members' 
Representatives (or Alternates in their absence) entitled to vote shall pass any action unless an 
action is taken which is subject to 6.9 below, in which case passage will be based on the required 
number of votes as if each Member's Representative or Alternate was present at a regular or 
special meeting called to decide such question.

6.5. Representatives: The Representative selected by the Member shall serve until a 
successor has been selected.  The Representative chosen by the Member may be removed at any 
time by the vote of the Member's governing body.  In the event that a vacancy occurs in the 
position of Representative or Alternate selected by the governing body of a Member, that body 
shall appoint a successor in writing within 60 days of such vacancy occurring.  The failure of a 
Member to select a Representative or the failure of that person to participate shall not affect the 
responsibilities or duties of a Member under this Intergovernmental Agreement.

6.6. The Executive Board and other Committees: The Board of Directors shall 
establish an Executive Board (known previously in this Agreement as Executive Committee). 
That Executive Board shall consist of the Chair of the Board of Directors, the Vice Chair of the 
Board of Directors, the Treasurer and four (4) Representatives elected by the Board of Directors.  
The Executive Board shall have the power to establish both standing and ad hoc committees to 
further the functions and purpose of this Pool.  Unless the Board of Directors establishes some 
other procedure, the authority for selection of Representatives or Alternates serving on the 
Executive Board who shall serve on such committees and chair them shall reside with the Chair
of the Board of Directors.  The Chair of the Board of Directors may appoint non-voting and non-
paid persons who are not Members of the Board of Directors to serve on committees of the Pool.
The Board of Directors shall, bi-annually select the four (4) Representatives during the final 
quarter of each two-year term to serve during the subsequent two-year term.  The term of office 
for the four (4) Representatives shall begin on the first day of a fiscal year and expire on the last 
day of a fiscal year. The Executive Board shall have the specific authority and power, as afforded 
herein by the Board of Directors, to grant binding approval for, and on behalf of, the Pool to bind 
any and all coverages for both Preferred Members and Standard Members with excess insurers, 
reinsurers, specific excess insurers, insurance underwriters, insurance wholesalers, insurance 
brokers and/or intermediaries, and with independent insurance contractors providing and/or 
affording both insurance and self-insurance coverages to the Pool Members. The Board of 
Directors shall grant to the Executive Board the authority to approve expenditures, authorize a 
settlement of claims and suits and take such other action as shall be specifically delegated to the 
Executive Board. The Executive Board may from time to time appoint interim replacements for 
any Executive Board member or Pool Officer who vacates their position on the Executive Board, 
who shall serve until the next scheduled election of such Executive Board member.



9

6.7. Operating Rules: The Board of Directors may establish rules governing its own 
conduct and procedure not inconsistent with this Intergovernmental Agreement.

6.8. Quorum: A quorum shall consist of a majority of the Representatives (or in their 
absence their Alternates) serving on the Board of Directors, or serving on the Executive Board.  
Except as provided in Section 6.9 herein, or elsewhere in this Intergovernmental Agreement, a 
simple majority of a quorum shall be sufficient to pass upon all matters.

6.9. Super-Majority Voting: A greater vote than a majority of a quorum shall be 
required to approve the following matters:

6.9.1.  Such matters as the Board of Directors shall establish within its rules as 
requiring for passage a vote greater than a majority of a quorum, provided, however, that 
such a rule can only be established by a greater than a majority vote at least equal to the 
greater than majority vote required by the proposed rule.

6.9.2.  (Deleted effective June 19, 2009).

6.9.3.  Any amendment of this Intergovernmental Agreement, except as provided 
in Subsection 4 below, shall require two-thirds (2/3) vote of all the Representatives 
serving on the Board of Directors.

6.9.4. The amendment of this Intergovernmental Agreement to cause a reduction 
or elimination in the scope of loss protection set out in Article 10 to be furnished by the 
self-insurance pool derived from payments from the Members, shall require that specific 
written notice of the proposed change be sent by registered or certified mail to the 
governing body of the Member and to the Representative serving on the Board of 
Directors, no less than ten (10) days prior to a meeting of the Executive Board at which 
this matter is proposed and the amendment as proposed or as amended must receive the 
approval of at least five (5) out of seven (7) Representatives of the then current  
Executive Board  representing the then Members of the Pool.

6.9.5.     In the event of a reduction or elimination in the scope of loss protection 
as set forth in Article 10 of this Intergovernmental Agreement receives the approval of at 
least five (5) out of the seven (7) Representatives of the then-current Executive Board as 
set forth in section 6.9.4, any Member may request, within twenty (20) days of the 
Executive Board voting to approve such reduction or elimination in the scope of loss 
protections as set forth in Article 10 of this Intergovernmental Agreement, in writing to 
the Chair of the Board of Directors that the Executive Board, at a special meeting, take 
official action to affirm, modify or reverse a decision of the Executive Board affecting the 
reduction or elimination in the scope of loss protection as set forth in section 6.9.4.  The 
Member shall be provided a full opportunity to explain their position to the Executive 
Board.  The Executive Board, by majority vote, may affirm, modify, reverse or defer the 
matter to the Board of Directors.



10

Any Member who disagrees with the Executive Board’s final determination may request 
in writing, within twenty (20) days of the Executive Board’s final determination, that the 
Board of Directors take action to affirm, modify or reverse the decision of the Executive 
Board.  The Member shall be provided a full opportunity at a special, or regular, meeting 
to explain their position to the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors, by majority 
vote of the Members, may affirm, modify or reverse the final determination or decision of 
the Executive Board.  Failure on the part of any Member to comply timely with the 
requirements for appealing the determination by the Executive Board to the Board of 
Directors within twenty (20) days thereof shall be deemed to be a waiver of any 
contractual, legal or other rights of appeal by, or on the part of, that Member.

6.10. Compensation of Board of Directors: No Representative or Alternate serving on 
the Board of Directors shall receive any salary from the Pool.

6.11 Conflict of Interest: Representatives and Alternates shall abide by the guidelines 
established by the State Ethics Commission in the performance of their duties, particularly as it 
applies to conflicts of interest and financial disclosure.

Article 7 - Board of Directors Meetings

7.1. Meetings: The Executive Board will establish regular meetings, which shall be 
held at least three (3) times a year. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held up to  
four (4) times a year.  The tentative times, dates, and locations of regular meetings of the Board 
shall be established at the beginning of each fiscal year, and the Executive Board will establish 
the tentative times, dates and locations of its regular meetings, and give timely and appropriate 
prior notice of said meetings to all Preferred and Standard Members.  Any item of business may 
be considered at a regular meeting, including the scheduling of future regular meetings.  The 
Executive Director shall attend all Board meetings and Executive Board meetings to serve as an 
advisor and to report as the administrative officer of the Pool.

7.2. Special Meetings: Special meetings of the Board of Directors or the Executive 
Board may be called by its Chair, or by any three Representatives (or in their absence their 
Alternates), with no less than 48 hours prior written notice. The Chair or in their absence, the 
Vice Chair, shall give ten (10) days written notice of regular or special meetings to the 
Representative and Alternate of each Member and an agenda specifying the subject of any special 
meeting shall accompany such notice. Business conducted at special meetings shall be limited to 
those items specified in the agenda.  The time, date and location of special meetings of the Board 
of Directors shall be determined by the Chair of the Board of Directors, or in their absence, by 
the Vice Chair. The Executive Board shall have the authority to call such special meetings when: 
(1) a threatened or actual natural disaster or other emergency exists which requires the scheduling 
of a special meeting; (2) it is substantially certain that a quorum of voting members will not be 
present for a scheduled, or upcoming, regular meeting of either the Board of Directors or 
Executive Board, such that consideration should be given to cancelling or rescheduling said 
meeting, and/or; (3) the Executive Board is requested to authorize the renegotiation of existing 
excess, reinsurance and any and all other coverages which occur or take place because of a 
significant reduction in the availability of existing capacity due to market conditions at that time.



11

7.3. Conduct of Meetings: To the extent not contrary to this Intergovernmental 
Agreement and except as modified by the Board of Directors, Robert's Rules of Order, latest 
edition, shall govern all meetings of the Board of Directors.  Minutes of all regular and special 
meetings of the Board of Directors shall be sent to all Representatives (or in their absence their 
Alternates) serving on the Board of Directors.

Article 8 - Pool Officers

8.1. Officers: Officers of the Pool shall consist of an Executive Director, a Treasurer, 
a Secretary and such other officers as are established from time to time by the Board of Directors.  
All Pool officers, with the exception of the Board Secretary who is hired by and reports directly 
to the Executive Director, shall be appointed by the Board of Directors.

8.2. Executive Director: The Executive Director shall be the chief administrative 
officer of the Pool and shall in general supervise and control the day to day operations of the Pool 
and shall carry out the policy and operational procedures of the Pool as established in this 
Intergovernmental Agreement and by the Board of Directors.  Among the Executive Director's 
duties shall be the following:

8.2.1.  The Executive Director may sign, with such other person authorized by the 
Board of Directors or by the Executive Board, any instruments which the Board of 
Directors or Executive Board have authorized to be executed and, in general, shall 
perform all duties incident to the office of Executive Director and such other duties as 
may be prescribed by the Board of Directors.

8.2.2. The Executive Director shall prepare a proposed annual budget and shall 
submit such proposals to the Board of Directors, and to the Executive Board.

8.2.3.  The Executive Director shall, where necessary, make recommendations 
regarding policy decisions, the creation of other Pool officers and the employment of 
agents and independent contractors.  At each regular meeting of the Board of Directors 
and at such other times, as shall be required to do so, shall present a full report of 
activities and the fiscal condition of the Pool.

8.2.4.  The Executive Director shall report annually to all Members on all claims 
filed and payouts made.

8.2.5.  The Executive Director shall, within the constraints of the approved or 
amended budget, employ all secretarial, clerical and other similar help and expend funds 
for administrative expenses.

8.3. Treasurer: The Treasurer shall:

8.3.1. Provide general financial oversight of the pool; shall have the authority and 
shall perform the duties prescribed by the Board of Directors or by direction of any 
Officer authorized by the by laws or the Board of Directors; shall be selected by the 
Board of Directors; 



12

8.3.2.  In general, perform all duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such 
other duties as from time to time may be assigned to that individual by the Board of 
Directors.  The Board of Directors shall bi-annually select a Treasurer to serve a two year 
term.  The term of office for the Treasurer shall begin on the 1st day of a fiscal year and 
expire on the last day of a fiscal year.

8.4. Secretary: The Secretary shall issue notices of all Board meetings, and shall 
attend and keep the minutes of same.  The Secretary shall have charge of all corporate books, 
records and papers; shall be custodian of the corporate seal; and shall keep all written contracts 
of the Pool.  In general, the Secretary shall perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary 
and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the Executive Director or the 
Board of Directors. 

8.5. Third Party Delegations: The Board may select a financial institution or certified 
public accountant to carry out some or all of the functions which would otherwise be assigned to 
a Treasurer and may select a risk management company or agent to serve as claims administrator 
or to carry out some or all of the functions which would otherwise be assigned to the Executive 
Director.  The Board may also employ persons or companies as independent contractors to carry 
out some or all of the functions of officers of the Pool.

8.6. Officer Vacancies: In the absence of the Executive Director, Treasurer or 
Secretary, or in the event of the inability or refusal of such officers to act, the Chair of the Board 
of Directors may perform the duties of the Executive Director, Treasurer or Secretary, and, when 
so acting, shall have all of the powers of and be subject to all of the restrictions upon the 
Executive Director, Treasurer or Secretary.

Article 9 - Finances and Risk Management Pool

9.1. Fiscal Year: The fiscal year of the Pool shall commence on October 1, and end on 
September 30, of each year.

9.2. Budget: The Board of Directors shall approve a preliminary budget for the 
administration of the Pool.  Copies of all preliminary and final budgets shall be provided to each
Member of the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors shall adopt a final budget.

9.3. Annual Payment Factors: In determining the amount of the Annual Payment due 
from each Member, the Executive Director may consider some or all of the following factors:

9.3.1.  Number of employees;

9.3.2.   Property values of the Member;

9.3.3.   Number and type of vehicles owned by the Member and the use made of 
the vehicles;

9.3.4.  Population of the geographic area represented by the Member;



13

9.3.5.  The payrolls of the Member;

9.3.6.  Any unusual exposures presented by the Member;

9.3.7.  The operating expenditures of the Member; and

9.3.8.  The claims and loss experience of the Member.

9.3.9   Member Deductible

9.3.10  Member Self-Insured Retention

9.4. Budget Amendments: Budgets may be amended at any time by majority vote of 
the Board of Directors.

9.5. Payments – Timing: In subsequent years, the Board of Directors may permit the 
Annual Payments to be made on a monthly or quarterly basis.

9.6. Retirement Fund Obligations: Members shall be both severally and jointly liable 
to the State of Florida Department of Administration, Division of Retirement for any Florida 
Retirement Systems' contributions, which are owed by the Pool for Pool employees.  Each 
member shall be responsible for expenses incurred which are attributable to the years of 
membership as outlined in the Intergovernmental Agreement, Article 11.

9.7. Distribution of Surplus Upon Cessation of the Pool: If in the event that the Pool
ceases to exist or operate for any year during which the Pool was in existence, all claims known 
or unknown have either been paid or provision has been made for such payment, the Board of 
Directors as then constituted shall distribute surplus funds to the Members who constituted the 
membership of the Pool in that prior year, after first deducting there from reasonable 
administrative and other non-allocated costs incurred by the Pool in the processing of the claims 
in years other than the one in which the claim was made.  The distribution among the Members 
shall be in the same proportion to the total as was their Annual Payment for that year to the 
Annual Payments of all Members for such year.

9.8. Audit: The Board of Directors shall provide to the Members an annual audit of 
the financial affairs of the Pool to be made by a certified public accountant at the end of each 
fiscal year in accordance with generally accepted auditing principles.

Article 10 - Excess Insurance

10.1. Specific Excess Insurance: The Pool may purchase Specific Excess Insurance 
from underwriters of insurance, insurance companies and/or Lloyd’s of London, approved by the 
Board of Directors, or any committee appointed by the Board for such purpose, in such amounts 
which shall be approved by the Board of Directors and underwriters, based upon but not limited 
to the current assets, risk analysis, and loss history of the Pool.  The purchase of Specific Excess 
Insurance does not, and is not, intended to waive sovereign immunity under Florida law.



14

10.2. Aggregate Excess Insurance: The Pool may purchase Aggregate Excess Insurance 
from underwriters of insurance, insurance companies and/or Lloyd’s of London, approved by the 
Board of Directors, or any committee appointed by the Board for such purpose, in such amounts 
which shall be approved by the Board of Directors and underwriters, based upon but not limited, 
to the current assets, risk analysis, and loss history of the Pool.  The purchase of Aggregate 
Excess Insurance does not, and is not, intended to waive sovereign immunity under Florida law.

10.3. Multiple Loss Coverage: The Pool may purchase Multiple Loss Coverage in the 
event a single occurrence involves more than one line of coverage, limiting the occurrence to a 
single “Self Insured Retention.”

10.4. Losses: The Risk Management Pool (Loss Fund), the Specific Excess Insurance 
and any optional Aggregate Excess Insurance purchased, shall provide payment for covered 
losses in any one policy year for members up to the limits approved by the Board of Directors.  
Should losses in any one policy year extinguish all available funds provided by the Pool then the 
individual Member or Members whose judgment or settlement of claim has been perfected by 
Florida law shall be responsible for any additional payment.  The Pool shall make payments in 
the order in which the judgments against the Pool have been entered or settlement of claims have 
been reached or other manner established at a meeting by the Board.  Membership in the Pool 
shall not preclude any Member from purchasing any insurance coverage above those amounts 
purchased by the Pool.

Article 11 - Obligations of Members

11.1. Member Obligations: The obligations of Members of the Pool shall be as follows:

11.1.1.  To budget for, where necessary, to levy for and to promptly pay all 
payments to the Risk Management Pool at such times and in such amounts as shall be 
established by the Board of Directors within the scope of this Intergovernmental 
Agreement.  Any delinquent payments shall be paid with a penalty, which shall be set by 
the Board, but such rate shall not exceed the highest interest rate allowed by statute to be 
paid by a Florida public agency.

11.1.2.  To select, in writing, a Representative to serve on the Board of Directors 
and to select an Alternate Representative.

11.1.3.  To allow the Pool reasonable access to all facilities of the Member and all 
records including, but not limited to, financial records, which relate to the purpose or 
powers of the Pool.

11.1.4. To allow attorneys employed by the Pool to represent the Member in 
investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of litigation arising out of any claim 
made against the Member within the scope of loss protection furnished by the Pool.

11.1.5.  To furnish full cooperation with the Pool attorneys, claims adjusters, the 
Executive Director and any agent, employee, officer or independent contractor of the Pool 
relating to the purpose or powers of the Pool.



15

11.1.6.  To follow in its operations all loss reduction and prevention procedures 
established by the Pool within its purpose or powers.

11.1.7.  To report to the Executive Director or their designee within the time limit 
specified the following items:

11.1.7.1.  To provide on or before November 1 of each policy year of the 
Pool, the Member's renewal application shall be completed by the member as 
required by the Underwriters.

11.1.7.2.  To report, within five (5) days of receipt, any and all statutory 
notices of claims, as well as summons and complaint or other pleading before a 
court or agency involving any claim for which Pool coverage is sought.

11.1.7.3.  To report, within ten (10) days of receipt, any oral or written 
demand for monetary relief for which coverage is sought to the Pool Executive 
Director.

11.1.7.4.  To report to the Executive Director at the earliest practicable 
moment any information of an occurrence, claim or incident received by the 
Member and from which the Member could reasonably conclude that coverage 
will be sought by said Member for such an occurrence, claim or incident.

In the event that the items set forth above are not submitted to the Executive Director within the 
time periods set forth above, the Board of Directors of the Pool, by a vote of a majority of a 
quorum of the Board, at a regular or special meeting, may in whole or part decline to provide a 
defense to the Member or to extend the funds of the Pool for the payment of losses or damages 
incurred.  In reaching its decision, the Board shall consider whether and to what extent the Pool 
was prejudiced in its ability to investigate and defend the claim due to the failure of the Member 
to promptly furnish timely notice of the occurrence, claim or incident to the Executive Director.  
The decision of the Board of Directors shall be final.  Failure of a Member to abide by these 
requirements shall also be grounds for expulsion from the Pool.

11.1.8.  To make Payment of any required Deductible(s).

11.2. Cancellation/Suspension of Coverage: In the event that a Member has made a
material misstatement or failed to comply with an underwriting requirement that created a 
substantial change in risk exposure, the Executive Board has the authority to cancel or suspend 
coverage.  The Member shall be notified of the reason in writing by the Executive Director and 
given a reasonable time to take corrective measure prior to the Executive Board’s action.

Article 12 - Liability of Board of Directors or Officers of the Pool

12.1. Liability of Directors and Officers: The Representatives (or in their absence their 
Alternates) serving on the Board of Directors or officers of the Pool should use ordinary care and 
reasonable diligence in the exercise of their power and in the performance of their duties 
hereunder; they shall not be liable for any mistake of judgment or other action made, taken or 



16

omitted by them in good faith; nor for any action taken or omitted by any agent, employee or 
independent contractor selected with reasonable care; nor for loss incurred through investment of 
Pool funds, or failure to invest.  No Representative shall be liable for any action taken or omitted 
by any other Representative.  Representatives shall have the immunities provided by law and in 
particular Florida Statutes Section 163.01.  The Pool may purchase insurance providing liability 
coverage for such Representatives or officers.

Article 13 - Additional Insurance

13.1. Member’s Option to Purchase Additional Insurance: The Pool, through the 
distribution of the minutes of the Board of Directors or through other means shall inform all 
Members of the scope and amount of Specific Excess and Aggregate Excess Insurance in force at 
all times.  Membership in the Pool shall not preclude any Member from purchasing any insurance 
coverage above those amounts purchased by the Pool.  Such purchase shall not be construed to 
waive sovereign immunity of the Members of the Pool or the Pool.  The Pool shall make its 
facilities available to advise Members of the types of additional or different coverages available 
to Pool Members.

Article 14 - Settlements

14.1. Settlement/Advance Notice: Whenever the Pool proposes to settle any pending 
claim or suit where the amount of that proposed settlement shall exceed Ten Thousand Dollars 
($10,000.00), the Member shall be given advance notice of that settlement.  Such notice may be 
given by the establishment of a reserve amount in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), 
provided that the amount of the settlement does not exceed the amount reserved.  The officers 
and employees of the Pool shall, however, endeavor to give specific oral or written notice to the 
Member's Representative or Alternate of the exact amount of any proposed settlement in excess 
of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) prior to the date at which the Pool proposes to bind itself 
to pay such settlement amount.  The officers, employees or independent contractors of the Pool 
shall attempt to give the Members, as much notice of the settlement negotiations as is possible 
under the circumstances of each case.

Article 15 – Coverage & Indemnity Dispute Resolution

15.1.  After having reviewed a claim forwarded to the Pool, the Executive Director, 
officer, employee or independent contractor shall, in writing, be permitted to decline to provide 
coverage or indemnification for such claim not believed to be within the scope of coverage 
provided by the Pool.  The claim may also be accepted and defense provided but the Pool may 
reserve the right to withdraw from the defense or to refuse to provide indemnification against the 
claim in the event that it is later determined that the claim is not properly within the scope of 
coverage afforded by the Pool.

Any Member may request in writing to the Chair of the Board of Directors, that the
Executive Board, at a regular scheduled meeting, take official action to affirm, modify or reverse 
a decision that a particular matter is or is not within the scope of coverage or indemnification 
provided by the Pool.  The Member shall be provided a full opportunity to explain their position
to the Executive Board.  The Executive Board, by majority vote, may affirm, modify, reverse or



17

defer the matter to the Board of Directors, subject to any insurance or reinsurance contractual 
obligations.

Any Member who disagrees with the Executive Board’s determination may request in 
writing that the Board of Directors, at a regular scheduled meeting, take action to affirm, modify 
or reverse the decision of the Executive Board.  The Member shall be provided a full opportunity 
to explain their position to the Board of Directors.  The Board of Directors, by majority vote of the 
Members, may affirm, modify or reverse the decision of the Executive Board, subject to any 
insurance or reinsurance contractual obligations.

Any Member may seek binding arbitration, if available, pursuant to the Pool’s General 
Coverage Document and, is not required to appeal a coverage or indemnification declination to 
either the Executive Board or Board of Directors.

Article 16 - Contractual Obligation

16.1. Enforcement: This document shall constitute a binding contract under the Florida 
Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969 among those public agencies, which become Members of the 
Pool.  The obligations and responsibilities of the Members set forth herein, including the 
obligation to take no action inconsistent with this Intergovernmental Agreement as originally 
written or validly amended, shall remain a continuing obligation and responsibility of the 
Member.  The terms of this Intergovernmental Agreement may be enforced in a court of law by 
the Pool.

The consideration for the duties herewith imposed upon the Members to take certain 
actions and to refrain from certain other actions shall be based upon the mutual promises and 
agreements of the Members set forth herein.  This Intergovernmental Agreement may be executed 
in duplicate originals and its passage by the Member's governing body shall be evidenced by a 
certified copy of a resolution passed by the members of the governing body in accordance with the 
rules and regulations of such public agency, provided, however, that except to the extent of the 
limited financial contributions to the Pool agreed to herein or such additional obligations as may 
come about through amendments to this Intergovernmental Agreement no Member agrees or 
contracts herein to be held responsible for any claims in tort or contract made against any other 
Member.  The Members intend in the creation of the Pool to establish an organization for Risk 
Management only within the scope herein set out and have not herein created as between Member 
and Member any relationship of surety, indemnification or responsibility for the debts of or claims 
against any Member.

16.2. Attorneys’ Fees: In any legal action between the parties arising out of this 
Agreement, any attempts to enforce this Agreement, or any breach of this Agreement, the 
prevailing party may recover its expenses of such legal action including, but not limited to, its 
costs of litigation (whether taxed by the court or not) and its reasonable attorneys' fees (including 
fees generated on appeals) from the other party.



18

Article 17 - Expulsion or Termination of Members

17.1. Expulsion.  By the vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors serving on the Board of 
Directors, and by a vote of at least five (5) out of the seven (7) Members serving on the Executive 
Board on decisions, determinations or issues involving section 4.3 of this Intergovernmental 
Agreement, any Member may be expelled.  Such expulsion may be carried out for one or more of 
the following reasons:

17.1.1.  Failure to make any timely payments due to the Pool.

17.1.2.  Failure to undertake or continue loss reduction and prevention procedures 
adopted by the Pool.

17.1.3. Failure to allow the Pool reasonable access to all facilities of the Member 
and all records which relates to the purpose, powers or functioning of the Pool.

17.1.4. Failure to furnish full cooperation with the Pool's attorneys, claims 
adjusters, the Executive Director and any agent, employee, officer or independent 
contractor of the Pool relating to the purpose, powers and proper functioning of the Pool.

17.1.5. Failure to carry out any obligation of a Member which impairs the ability of 
the Pool to carry out its purpose or powers or functions.

17.1.6. The Preferred Member has given the forty-five (45) days notice described 
in Section 4.2 and 4.3 above.

17.2. Notice: No Member may be expelled except after notice from the Pool of the 
alleged failure along with a reasonable opportunity of not less than thirty (30) days to cure the 
alleged failure.  The Member may request a hearing before the Board before any decision is made 
as to whether the expulsion shall take place.  The Board shall set the date for a hearing which shall 
not be less than fifteen (15) days after the expiration of the time to cure has passed. 

A decision by the Board to expel a Member after notice and hearing and a failure to cure 
the alleged defect shall be final.  The Board of Directors may establish the date at which the 
expulsion of the Member shall be effective at any time not less than sixty (60) days after the vote 
expelling the Member has been made by the Board of Directors.  If the motion to expel the 
Member made by the Board of Directors or a subsequent motion does not state the time at which 
the expulsion shall take place, such expulsion shall take place sixty (60) days after the date of the 
vote by the Board of Directors expelling the Member.

17.3. Responsibilities of Terminated Member:  A former Member shall only continue to 
be fully responsible only for its’ portion of any obligations incurred but not satisfied during the 
period of time they were a Member of the Pool.  Such obligations may include, but not be limited 
to, premiums, loss fund payments, maintenance deductibles, workers’ compensations, final audit 
and administrative fees, etc., owed or unpaid by the former Member.  The former Member shall 
no longer be entitled to participate or vote on the Board of Directors.



19

Article 18 - Special Provisions for Deferred Funding

During the fiscal years commencing on October 1, 1987 and ending on September 30, 
1990, the entire Annual “Loss Fund” Contribution was not required by the Board of Directors to 
be paid within the fiscal year to which it was applicable.  The difference between the Annual
“Loss Fund” Contribution and the amount required by the Board of Directors to actually be paid 
to the Pool during such year by a Member is referred to herein as Deferred Funding.  Members 
and former Members during any year for which there existed Deferred Funding may be required 
by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Executive Director to pay their applicable 
portion of the Deferred Funding in subsequent years.  Members or former members will be 
allowed forty-five (45) days after notification to make any payments of Deferred Funding. The 
amount of any payments required for Deferred Funding as to each Member shall be based upon 
the same formula as was used in establishing the Annual “Loss Fund” Contribution for that year.

Article 19 - Termination of the Pool

19.1. Termination: If, at the conclusion of any term of the Pool, the Board of Directors 
votes to discontinue the existence of the Pool in accordance with Section 6.9.4., then the Pool 
shall cease its existence at the close of the then current fiscal year.  Under those circumstances, the 
Board of Directors shall continue to meet on such a schedule as shall be necessary to carry out the 
termination of the affairs of the Pool.  It is contemplated that the Board of Directors may be 
required to continue to hold meetings for some substantial period of time in order to accomplish 
this task, including the settlement of all covered claims incurred during the term of the Pool.  The 
Pool shall continue to be fully responsible and obligated to pay covered claims and expenses owed 
by the Pool, which accrued before the Pool's termination.  The money used to pay such covered 
claims and expenses shall remain with the Pool until such claims are settled and expenses are 
paid. 

19.2. Post-Termination Responsibilities of Member: After termination of the Pool, the 
Member shall continue to hold membership on the Board of Directors but only for the purpose of 
voting on matters affecting their limited continuing interest in the Pool for such years as they were 
Members of the Pool. 



20

In witness whereof, this agreement has been executed by the 

Entity:__________________________________________________.  The approval of the 

foregoing agreement was passed by the Entity: _________________________________ 

____________________________________  on the  day of , 20 , and 

attached hereto, I do hereby execute and the  ___________________does hereby attest to my 

signature as evidence that the ________________________________________ has approved and 

hereby becomes a bound signatory member of the "Intergovernmental Cooperative Agreement" 

for Public Risk Management of Florida, a copy of which is attached hereto, and which is pursuant 

to Florida Statutes Section 163.01, which commenced its term on October 1, 1987.

__________________________________
Chair of Board

___________________________________
Chair, Public Risk 
Management of Florida

ATTEST:

This day of , 20 .



 

ACTION ITEMS 

LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH C-SPEED, LLC  























 

ACTION ITEMS 

DIRECTOR OF AIRPORTS EVALUATION  



 

REPORT 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS UPDATE  



Airport Project Updates
• Challenger Ave Extension Phase I
• TIX 18/36 Rehab Design
• TIX Air Traffic Control Tower
• TIX Airfield Marking Project
• TIX Northeast Corp Hangar Project
• COI Runway 11/29 Rehab Design
• COI AWOS 



• PROJECT: Challenger Avenue 
Extension Phase I

• BUDGET: $460,000- Design (100% 
funded by NBEDZ)

• CURRENT STATUS: Design is 90% 
complete, additional geotech for revised 
drainage design scheduled for October. 



• PROJECT: TIX RWY 18/36 Rehabilitation 
Design/Construction

• BUDGET: $806,000 (90% FAA, 8% FDOT,    2% Local) 
     – Design

     $10,332,122 (90% FAA, 8% FDOT, 2% 
    Local) - Construction

• CURRENT STATUS: Construction is expected to start 
in January of 2025. Duration of the project is 5 
months.



• PROJECT: Airport Traffic Control Tower – Space Coast Regional 

• BUDGET: $1,040,00 (80% FDOT, 20% Local) – Design
      $8,875,000 ($2,000,000 FAA, 80% FDOT, 20% Local) - 

     Construction

• CURRENT STATUS: Site Permit approved, Building and 
Engineering Permit underway. Construction expected to start 
Winter of 2025 with a duration of 596 days. 



• PROJECT: Space Coast Regional 
Airfield Marking Project

• BUDGET: $171,961 (90% FAA, 
8% FDOT, 2% Local)

• CURRENT STATUS: Construction 
expected in November 2024



• PROJECT: Space Coast Regional 
Northeast Corporate Hangar Design 
Project

• BUDGET: $775,000 (80% FDOT, 
20% Local)

• CURRENT STATUS: Design 
commencing Oct 1st, 2024. Expected 
to take 9 months. Project will be 
publicly bid summer of 2025.



• PROJECT: Merritt Island Airport Runway 11-29 Rehab Design

• BUDGET: $407,537 (90% FAA, 8% FDOT, 2% Local)

• CURRENT STATUS: Survey files on hand, waiting on topo files. Expecting 
30% design drawings within 2 weeks, along with updated cost estimates.



• PROJECT: Merritt Island Airport AWOS Replacement

• BUDGET: $500,000 (80% FDOT, 20% Local)

• CURRENT STATUS: Closeout paperwork in progress



• PROJECT: Merritt Island Airport 
Corporate Hangar Project

• BUDGET: $1,057,178 (50% FDOT, 
50% Tenant)

• CURRENT STATUS: Brevard County 
reviewing drainage calculations and 
relocated dumpster before issuing 
Certificate of Occupancy. 



Airport Noise Complaints
August 2024

X21 - 0

TIX – 0

COI – 1



July 2024 Average Daily Operations

X21      57
TIX       204
COI      389

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

S O N D J F M A M J J A

2023/2024 Operations

X21 TIX COI

Data collected by VirTower



 

REPORT 

CHECK REGISTER  



Vendor Type Num Date Amount

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6324 08/09/2024 257.61

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6325 08/09/2024 43.52

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6326 08/09/2024 187.36

AT&T Internet Bill Pmt -Check 6327 08/09/2024 12.49

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6328 08/09/2024 15,464.18

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6329 08/09/2024 19,830.00

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6330 08/09/2024 9,210.40

AVCON Bill Pmt -Check 6331 08/09/2024 506.25

Aviation Construction & Electric LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6332 08/09/2024 4,865.16

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6333 08/09/2024 143.80

Central Hydraulics Bill Pmt -Check 6334 08/09/2024 199.99

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6335 08/09/2024 875.80

Dish Bill Pmt -Check 6336 08/09/2024 80.10

Faster Than Sound, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6337 08/09/2024 1,780.00

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6338 08/09/2024 1,848.95

Gatto's Tires & Auto Service Bill Pmt -Check 6339 08/09/2024 248.96

Home Depot Credit Services Bill Pmt -Check 6340 08/09/2024 402.35

InterFlight Global Corporation Bill Pmt -Check 6341 08/09/2024 850.00

LOWE'S Bill Pmt -Check 6342 08/09/2024 157.11

NAPA Auto Parts Bill Pmt -Check 6343 08/09/2024 289.66

Nix Pest Management Bill Pmt -Check 6344 08/09/2024 171.00

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6345 08/09/2024 12,837.16

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6346 08/09/2024 25,143.97

RICONDO Bill Pmt -Check 6347 08/09/2024 29,120.94

Ring Power Corporation Bill Pmt -Check 6348 08/09/2024 23,997.83

Robertson's Lawns Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6349 08/09/2024 1,000.00

Space Coast Forklift, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6350 08/09/2024 435.00

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6351 08/09/2024 3,700.00

Waste Management Bill Pmt -Check 6352 08/09/2024 464.75

Watkins Oil Bill Pmt -Check 6353 08/09/2024 2,879.45

Whitebird Attorneys at Law Bill Pmt -Check 6354 08/09/2024 4,621.48

Doug Keehn Bill Pmt -Check 6355 08/09/2024 106.81

Wes Whitley Bill Pmt -Check 6356 08/09/2024 363.97

Joyce Culley Bill Pmt -Check 6357 08/09/2024 344.98

Richard Todd Bill Pmt -Check 6358 08/09/2024 3,388.59

Doug Keehn Bill Pmt -Check 6359 08/09/2024 338.65

Wes Whitley Bill Pmt -Check 6360 08/09/2024 280.00

Joyce Culley Bill Pmt -Check 6361 08/09/2024 37.23

Lynn Hilker Bill Pmt -Check 6362 08/09/2024 25.00

Davis Vision Bill Pmt -Check 6363 08/23/2024 79.45

August 2024 Check Register



CHLIC Bill Pmt -Check 6364 08/23/2024 526.09

Board of County Commissioners Bill Pmt -Check 6365 08/23/2024 15,800.95

Standard Insurance Company Bill Pmt -Check 6366 08/23/2024 619.58

Mission Square - 303301 Bill Pmt -Check 6367 08/23/2024 257.61

AAAE Bill Pmt -Check 6368 08/23/2024 275.00

Alligator Plumbing Bill Pmt -Check 6369 08/23/2024 9,065.00

Amazon Capital services Bill Pmt -Check 6370 08/23/2024 260.96

AT&T Bill Pmt -Check 6371 08/23/2024 471.10

AT&T Business Bill Pmt -Check 6372 08/23/2024 800.10

AT&T Mobility Bill Pmt -Check 6373 08/23/2024 378.46

Black's Spray Service, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6374 08/23/2024 175.00

Brady Industries, LLC Bill Pmt -Check 6375 08/23/2024 491.09

Brevard Uniform Co Bill Pmt -Check 6376 08/23/2024 66.90

City Electric Supply Co Bill Pmt -Check 6377 08/23/2024 80.91

City of Cocoa Bill Pmt -Check 6378 08/23/2024 335.82

City Of Titusville Bill Pmt -Check 6379 08/23/2024 308.97

Culligan Bill Pmt -Check 6380 08/23/2024 216.77

Dynafire Bill Pmt -Check 6381 08/23/2024 838.06

FedEx Bill Pmt -Check 6382 08/23/2024 33.05

Florida Airports Council Bill Pmt -Check 6383 08/23/2024 1,650.00

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6384 08/23/2024 637.78

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6385 08/23/2024 1,036.44

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6386 08/23/2024 2,127.76

FPL Bill Pmt -Check 6387 08/23/2024 4,317.91

Gannett Florida LocaliQ Bill Pmt -Check 6388 08/23/2024 106.72

Infrastructure Consulting & Engineering Bill Pmt -Check 6389 08/23/2024 12,236.25

NAPA Auto Parts Bill Pmt -Check 6390 08/23/2024 27.99

Pitney Bowes Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6391 08/23/2024 192.54

Sunbelt Rentals, Inc Bill Pmt -Check 6392 08/23/2024 617.45

T's Handyman Service Bill Pmt -Check 6393 08/23/2024 5,917.00

Stine Fredheim Bill Pmt -Check 6394 08/23/2024 260.00

Christina Kinard Bill Pmt -Check 6395 08/23/2024 170.25

Michael Carver Bill Pmt -Check 6396 08/23/2024 200.00

Wings of Grace/Aaron Hammitt Bill Pmt -Check 6397 08/23/2024 25.00

227,114.46



 

REPORT 

PRELIMINARY AUGUST 2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  











 

REPORT 

AUTHORITY ATTORNEY  



 

REPORT 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS  



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  



 

ADJOURN 


	09.19.2024 AGENDA COVER SHEET 9.11.24
	Call to Order
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Roll Call
	Approval of Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	MINUTES July Regular Board Meeting
	MINUTES August Regular Board Meeting - 9.11.24
	RATIFICATION OF ACTION ITEMS FROM AUGUST 15 2024 REGULAR BOARD MEETING
	FAA GRANT AGREEMENT NO 3 12 0080 038 2024
	STitusville24091317060
	FAA GRANT AGREEMENT NO 3 12 0080 040 2024
	STitusville24091317090
	FAA GRANT AGREEMENT NO 3 12 0080 39 2024
	STitusville24091317070
	FDOT PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 453054 1 94 01 AMMENDMENT 1
	FDOT Runway 18-36 not executed
	FDOT Runway 18-36 Res (signed)
	FDOT PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGREEMENT 450522 1 94 01 AMMENDMENT 3
	STitusville24091317180
	Resolution - 00-24-15 - Amdt 3 to FDOT grant agreement AWOS MI - signed
	Construction Contract
	_ATCT Contract FULLY EXECUTED
	FDOT 438461 1 94 01 AMENDMENT 4
	To Sponsor Amendment #4 Time Extension PTGA 438461-1 Corporate Hangar at Merritt Island
	Resolution 00-24-16
	ACTION ITEM INSURANCE
	24-25 Titusville Cocoa Airport Authority Proposal
	Current PC By-Laws 4-27-18
	ACTION C SPEED
	CSpeed_SC Airport Lease rreed 090424
	DIRECTOR EVALUATION
	CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REPORT
	Justin September 2024 Project Update
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	CHECK REGISTER
	August Check Register
	FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUGUST
	August 2024 Preliminary Financial Statements
	ATTORNEY
	AUTHORITY MEMBERS
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	ADJOURN



